DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
Lorl A, Weaver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

Interim Commissioner 603-271-4501  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Patricia M. Tilley
Director

May 3, 2023
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into an amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research & Training
institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute (VC# 161611), Bow, NH, to continue the
development and implementation of the Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention
and Treatment to Pre-Teens and Adolescents, by exercising a contract renewal option, by
increasing the price limitation by $440,000 from $515,000 to $955,000 and extending the
completion date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% General Funds.

. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on February 16, 2022, item
#32, and amended with Governor and Council approval on July 27, 2022, item #15.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-56080000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY HEALTH,
TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CESSATION PROGRAM (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State Increased ;
Fiscal Choss / Class Title b Sl (Decreased) Woysee
Account Number | Budget Budget
Year Amount
2022 | 102-500731 | CoMractsfor | 45018008 | $145,000 $0| $145,000
Prog Svc
2023 | 102-500731 | COMrACS T | 95018008 | $220,000 $0| $220,000
Prog Svc
Subtotal | $365,000 $0 | $365000
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05-95-90-904510-32240000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND -

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BU
WELLNESS, TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CESSATION P

EAU OF PREVENTION &
OGRAM (100% GENERAL

DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU O
' SABG ADDITIONAL (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

FUNDS) ;
State Increased
Fiscal Ach:::r:t Class Title N:r::er (;::’re:tt (Decreased) l::\::set:
| Year 108 Amount ge
Contracts for |
202_4 102-500731 Prog Sve 90018008 $Cf: $220,000 | $220,000
Contracts for : .
2025 | 102-500731 < 80018008 $0 $220,000 | $220,000
.Prog Svc :
Subtotal s0l|  $440,000| $440,000
05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, I-I:EALTH'AND HUMAN SVCS

DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to contin

disseminating Department-approved marketing materials as pa
media and- communication campaigns to prevent and reduce el
use among Middle and High-School Aged Youth.

The Contractor will continue to assist the Department tp increase vaping prevention

through primary and secon
prevention and treatment wit
stakeholders. The mass-media campaigns incorporat
nealth communication principles, current best practices in accordance

Disease Control (CDC), and paid; eamed digital; and social media strategies.

State F Increased -
Fiscal Clagpd Class Title Job 0ur(ent (Decreased) Revised
Account Number Budget Budget
Year Amount
- Grants for -
2022 074-500585 Pub Asst | 92055502 $75,000 $0 $75,000
: and Rel. |
Grants for . _ _
2023 | 074-500585 Pub Asst. | 92055502 $75,000 $0|  $75,000
and Rel
Subtotal | - $150,000 $0| $150,000
Total $515,000 $440,000 | $955,000
1=
EXPLANATION

e developing, promoting, and
of the statewide marketing,
ronic cigarette initiation and

dary tobacco prevention mass-media marketing, aligning vaping
h NH adolescent networks, and supporting communications with
e behavior change theories, marketing and-
with the Centers for
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Adolescent high-school aged youth are more likely to uge e-cigarettes than any other
tobacco product. E-cigarette usage rates have risen sharply in |recent years. There is strong
scientific evidence, according to the CDC, that indicates mass-reach heaith communications on
comprehensive tobacco prevention and cessation programs reduce tobacco use among youth
and -adults, increase quit attempts, increase use of cessation| services, and prevent youth
“initiation. - : -'

The Contractor will continue developing vaping prevenlion campaign strategies and
message testing, as-well as review national media campaigns tq identify the best approach to
reach the target audience of Middle and High-School Aged Youth. In addition, the Contractor
will continue to engage community partners, and collaborate with vaping prevention networks and
community leaders, statewide.

Campaigns include éontinuing the '‘Save Your Breath |[NH' and ‘My Life, My Quit’
campaigns, collaboration with community partners and influencers, and utilize a blend of digital
and social media to increase campaign engagement among the target population. '

The Department will continue to monitor services to ensunt

¢ The number of ‘My Life,' My Quit' vaping treatmpnt users increases by a
minimum of 150 participants for calendar years 2023 and 2024. (Baseline: 117
participants for calendar years 2021 & 2022).

s E-cigarette use among Middle and High-School Aged Youth decreases by a
minimum of five percent (5%), compared to the feported 2021 Youth Risk
Behavior Survey (YRBS) of 16.2%.

» E-cigarette. initiation among Middle and High-Schopl Aged Youth indicates a -
_ decrease by a minimum of five percent (5%), compared to the‘reported 2021°
~ YRBS of 31%. o )

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding| agreement of the parties and’
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) years of the two (2) years available. : : ;

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request; the Department would not be
" able to continue these mass:reach health communication campaigns which may. lead to an
increase in Middle and High-School Aged Youth use of tobacco prpducts, and a decrease in quit
- attempts, cessation services, and the prevention of youth initiation;

Area served: Statewide.
Respedtfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
interim [Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services’ Mission is'to ja'in commmu’t'ies ond families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health gnd independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human SenJices
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment to Pre-
Teens and Adolescents contract is by and between the State of New [Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services ("State” or "Department”) and JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a
Community Health Institute ("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
February 16, 2022 (Item #32), as amended on July 27, 2022 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in |the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and .

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Paragraph 1., Subparagraph 1.1., thp Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Tecutive Council, and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement a
support continued delivery of these services; and

d increase the price limitation to

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual cgvenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend|as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to [fead:
June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to r
$955,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:
1. _This Agreement is funded by:

L4%

ad:

1.1. 16% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block
Grant COVID-19 Supplemental Award, as awarded on March 15, 2021, by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Sbbstance Abuse & Mental Health
Services Administration, Assistance Listing Numper (ALN) 93.959; FAIN TI083509;
and ALN 93.387, FAIN NU58DP006786; and

1.2. 84% General Funds
4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for gctual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-7, B'erget Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, SFY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

C
JS| Research & Training Institute, inc. A-5-1.2 Contractor Initials

d/b/a Community Health Institute -
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01 Page 10f 3 Date /92023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by
5/5/2023 lf-’i’qrm; M, They
Date Name: PatriEh T M T 1ey
Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community
Heaith Institute
|

DocuSigned by
5/4/2023 bativ Kolurt
Date Name.  Katie Robert
Title: Director

JS| Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by: |
5/5/2023 len, Qoo

FErT-a

Date Name: Roby‘l; Guarino
Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A02 Page 30of 3
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Exhibit C-6, Amendment 2, SFY 2024 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research-& Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
Project Title: Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment to Pre-Teens and Adolescents
Budget Period: July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024
Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match ‘1 - Funded by DHHS contract share
Line ltem i Direct Indirect Total Direct ~ Indirect - Total ~ “Direct Indirect Total
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 71568591 % - $ 7156859 | % - $ - $ E $ 71,5685 $ - $ 71,568.59
2. Employee Benefits $ 3359430[ % - $ 3359430189 - $ - $ - $ 33594301 $ - $ 33,594.30
3. Consultants 3 - $ - 3 - $ - $ - -$ - $ - 3 - $ - -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - % - $ - E - $ -
Rental $ - $ - 5 - 1% - 5 - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ - $ -
Purchase/Oepreciation 3 - $ - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - 5 - $ - 18 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Educational 3 - $. - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ $ - $ E 3 - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Medical $ = 3 - b N [ = $ = $ - 3 = $ - £ -
Office 5 - 3 - $ - $ - 5 - $ - $ - 5 - $ -
6. Travel $ 60000 §- - $ 600005 - $ - $ - $§ 600001 S - $ 600.00
7. Occupancy $ - 5 - $ - $ - 5 - $ - $ - $ - ] -
8. Curreni Expenses $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
Telephone . 3 - 3 - $ - 3 - '$ - $ - $ - % - $ -
Postage $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Subscriptions T3 15 s S 15 - [s 1= I :
i 3 = 3 = 5. - 3 = 3 [ 3 3 3
Insurance $ 3 - ] - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses - 3 - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
9.  Software 3 - 5 - $ - $ - $ - $ - % - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ - 3 z $ - $ - 3 = % r $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 15 - % - $ - 3 =
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 75000.00] % - $ 76,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ 76,00000] % - $ 76,000.00
13. .Other (specific details mandatory). | $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ = 5 . -
shipping, influencerfbrand ambassador{ $  13.000.00 | $ - |'% 13,00000 (% - $ - $ - $ 13,000.00] § - $ 13,000.00
: 5 - % - $ - $ - 5 - 15 - $ - 3 - $ e
Indirect Cost (11.5%) $ 25237111 . b 25.237.11 - i - $- - $ 25,237.11 $ 2523711
- - -  TOTAL J]$ 220,000.001 §- - $220,000.00.. - R =3 - $220,000.00. T $220,000.00
JSI's Current Negotiated Cost Recovery :
JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. . —Ds
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A02 . . :
Exhibit C-8, Amendment 2, SFY 2024 Budget : o . : L’K 5/4 /2'02.3
_Page 1 of 1 & : Contractor Initial Date
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Exhibit C-7, Amendment 2, SFY 2025 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Contractor Name: JS| Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
" Project Title: Mass-Media Campaigns to Promota Vaping Prevention and Treatment to Pre-Teens and Adolescents
Budget Period: July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025 i
Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match - Funded by DHHS contract share

Line ltem - Direct Indirect - Total Direct Indirect - otal Direct indirect Total
1. Total Salary/Wages $ . 71,56859] % - $ 71.568591% - $ - 3 - $ 715685918 - $ 71,568.5%
2. Employee Benefits 3 33,594.30] & - $ 3359430 (8% - $ - 3 - S 33594308 - $ 33,594.30
3. Consultants $ - - 8 - 5 - .18 - 3 - $ - $ - $ - S = .
4. Equipment: S - 3 - 3 - $ - $ - 5 - $ = $ - - $ -
Rental s - $ - E - [ - 3 - $ - $ - 5 - 3 -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - 18 L= $ - $ - $ - $ - ] - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - S - 3 -
5. Supplies: 5 . - 5 - $ - $ 5 - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Educational $ - 15§ - $ $ - $ - ] - $ 3 - 3 -
Lab ~ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - 5 . 5 - $ -
Pharmacy 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - - 3 - 5 - 5 - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ = $ - $ - $ = 5 - 5 - $ -
Oftice 5 - $ - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - ‘$ - $ - $ -
6. Travel $ 600.00 ] ¢ - $ 600.00 [ § - $ - 5 - $ 600001 % - $ 600.00
7. Occupancy $ - $ - 3 - $ - [ - $ - $ - 9 - 3 -
8. Current Expenses S - s - $ = $ - 3 - $ - 5 - 3 - 3 -
Telephone $ - $ - 3 - [ - $ - g - $ - 5 - 3 -
Postage $ - $ - E - $ g $ - $ - 5 - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ $ - $ - $ 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - 5 - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $- - 3 - 3 -
insurance $ $ - $ - $ - 5 - - ] - $ - 3 - $ -
Board Expenses S - s - [ - k] - §: - 5 - $ - 5 - $ -
9. Software 3 - $ - $ - $ - $- - 3 - $ - S - $ -
10, Marketing/Communications 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - S - S -
11, Staff Education and Training 3 - 5 - S - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 3 76,000.001] § - v 7600000 | § - $ - $ - $ 76,000.00]3% - § 76,000.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory}): $ - $ - $ - $ - ] - $ - 3 - $ - 3 -
shipping, influencer/rand ambassadors, s{ $ 13,000.00 -5 - - $§ 13000009 ’ $ - $ - $ 1300000]8 - $ 13.000.00

' s - 3 - 3 - 5 - ] - $ - $ % $ =
Indirect Cost (13.0 %) $ 25,237.11 $ 25237111 % - 3 - $ - $ 25,237.11 $ 25:237.11

y TOTAL $ 220,000.00 | § 5 ¥ ,000.00 | § - - $ - $ 220,000.00 | & - $ 220,000.00 |-

JSI's Current Indirect Cost Recovery

JSI Research Training [nstitute, Inc.
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A02
Exhibit C-7, Amendment 2, SFY 2025 Budgel
Page 1 of 1 '

w0 DS
Bk ' ) | ky 5/4/2023
Contractor Initia! Date
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State of New Hamps:hire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE |

[, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certlfy that COMMUNITY HEALTH
INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. [ further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned. |

Business [D; 742096
Certificate Number: 0006112343

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
thé Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
thi:rs 9th day of February A.D. 2023.

Pavid M. Scanlan
Secrretary of State
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State of New Hamps
Department of St;

CERTIFICATE

walr

hire

te

o

as

e

i, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cermfy that JSI RESEARCH.& TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is 8 Masséchusetts Nonprofit Corporation 'rc'gisi'c'i-éd'lo transact bu

2016. I further centify that all fees and documents requircd by the-Secretary-of State’s,

standing as far as this dffice is concerned.

oy

Business ID; 739507
Certificate Number: 0005859542

£

L

ingss in Now Hanipshire on February 17,

vffice have been received and is ingood

,
i

N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
hereto set my hand and cause to'be affixed.
be Seal of the State of New-Hampshire,

bis 15t day of September A.D. 2022.
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CER IFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I Margéret M. Crotty, of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. hereby certify

that:

4. 1amaduly elected President & CEO of 451 Research & Training Ingtitute, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board
and held on the 280 of May, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors!
voling.

nf Directors/shareholders, duly called
shareholders were present and

'VOTED: That Katie Robert as Director of JSI Research & Training Institutg,

Inc., d/bl/a Community Health

Institute is duly authorized on behalf of JSI Research & Training Institute, Ipc. to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or depaitments and further is authorized to

~ execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any a

endments, revisions, or

modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.”

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and
the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate
valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority.
that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evide
currently occupy the position{s) indicated and that they have full-auth
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individua
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly st

Dated: May 3, 2023

remains in full force and effect as of

s attached. This authority remains

| further certify that it is understood

ce that the person(s) listed above

rity to bind the corporation. To the -
to bind the corporation in contracts

ed herein.

_Signature of

?!ected Officer

Name: Margaret M. Crotty
Title: President & CEO

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD’
e

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSUIr?ANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
9/20/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BE]
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
TWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies} must have
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln polig
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}).

ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
ies may require an andorsement. A statement on

PRODUCER Lo conmcr Sarah Andergon -
AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner I’N"E'."E B00-648-4807 | X ioy: 7B1-447-7230
458 South Ave T
Whitman MA 02382 ADOREsS: sarah.anderson@ahtins.com
' INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Licenses: c,qydssa',rqa INSURER A : Federal Insurance Company 20281
INSURED JOHNSNG-0| | oiper B : ACE Ameri¢an Insurance Company

JSI dfbfa Community Health Institute

22667

501 South Street INSURERIC :
2nd floor INSURER D
Bow NH 03304 INSURER E :

[NSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 450773069

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO TH
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR .CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OF
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES [
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAI

E INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
D CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL] P

SUBR] POLICY ICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE . WYD POLICY NUMBER mumnrvw;) {M DOIYYY) LIMITS
A X COMM_ERC]AL GENERAL LIABILITY 35873320 97972022 92023 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES {Ea ocourrepce) | $ 1,000,000
MED EXP (Any one parson) $ 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
poucy | 5% [T oe PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG |§
OTHER: ' $
T COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 73546634 8/9/2022 $/5/2023 | (£ accident) $ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par parson} | § 1,000,000
' OWNED SCHEDULED
e SeLED BODILY INJURY {Par accident)| $ 1,000,000
X HIRED X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 1,000,000
AUTOSONLY {7 | AUTOS ONLY ' | {Per accident} il
$
A | X | UMBRELLA LIAE X | occur 796861066 /912022 19/2023 . | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 20,000,000
EXCESS LIAB . CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 20,000,000
| peD I I RETENTION $ $
A |WORKERS COMPENSATION 7173 Y 41972023 PER, GIH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vIn 2402 /912022 Shrure | | ER
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED? NiA -
{Mandatory In nn) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 1,000,000
i yos, describe u
0 SCRIPTION o:—' OPERATIONS beioy E.L. DISFASE - POLICY LiMIT | § 1,000,000
B [E8SONC DO6621772 11/30/2021 | 1§/30/2022 | GENERAL AGGREGATE 5,000,000
A DIRECTORS & OFFICERS 82626344 11/30/2021 | 11/30/2022 |EACH QCCIGEN AGG: 3,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES [ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, may be attached If mors sphca is required)

ACORD 25 {2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks o

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER. CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
: . ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NH Department of Health and Human Services

éignsol?gsNan tossg(e)?t AUTHORIZED REPRESENTAJIVE
Pz =

l

©1988{2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing couhtries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inceptio::q:] SI has successfully

completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.
|

JST Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as 1;501 ©3 non-profit
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute’s mission is to suppozt and stringthen,Ncw Harmnpshire’s
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemlhnation and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents. |
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@ GrantThornton.

GRANT THORNTON LLP

75 State Street, 13" Floor
Boston, MA 02109

D +1617 723 7900
F 1617 7233840

GT.COM

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED) PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Dlreclors
JSI Research and Training Instltute Inc.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. {a nonprofit organization) and affiliates {the “Entity™), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position|of the Entity as of September 30, 2021, and
thé changes in its net assets and its cash [lows for the year then ended in accordance

. with accounting principles generally accepfted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion . .

We conducted our audit of the consolidatgd financial statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America {US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial dudits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Geriaral of the United States {Government
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities uUnder those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be indepengent of the Enlity and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit, We believe that the audit eviderlce we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audi} opinion.”

Responsibilities of management for thg financial statements

Management is responsible for the prepargtion and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accori:!ance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, [and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant ta the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that arefree from material mlsstaternent whether
due to fraud or error.

tn preparing the consolidated financial stalements,'management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or gvents, considered in the aggregate, that -
raise substantial doubt about the Entity's gbility to continue as a going concern for
one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Grant Thomiton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thomton lntemational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and sach of its member fims
are separate legal eniilies and are not a worldwide partnership.,
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financial statements as a whole are free

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit ?f the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable agsurance about whether the consolidated

m material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s re rt that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance bufis not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted irl accordance with US GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a materia! misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material|misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the oveir:de of internal control, Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantleﬂ likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgmient made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with [JS GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and rjaintain professional skepticism throughout
_ the audit.

« “ldentify and assess the risks of materjal misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks.|Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the ampunts and disclosures in the financial

. statements. ' 1

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate [In the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion (s expressed. -

« -Evaluate the appropriateness of accolinting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounfing eslimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantiat doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable perlbd of time,

We are reqwred to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope gnd timing of the audit, significant audit

findings, and certain internal control-refatell matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated:
financial statements as a whole. The schefiule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administraiive
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analygis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such sypplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was defjved from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records Used to prepare the consolidated financial -
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statgments and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included co pgring and reconciling such information
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directly to the underlying accounting and ather records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to theg consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation o the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing $tandards, we have also issued our report

- dated June 24, 2022 on our consideration jof the Entity's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its complianci with certain provisions of laws,

- regulations, contracts, and grant agreemenfts ‘and other matters. The purpose of that |
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion.

- on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considéring the Entity’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. ’

MWLLF

Boston, Massachusetts .
June 24, 2022
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and L\fﬁliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets
"Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables for program work
Field advances - program .
Employee advances
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Accrued vacation .
Advances for program work
Total current liabilities
Net assets
Without donor restrictions -
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financia! st:

]

FPOSITION

slement.

$ 96415811
44,323,084
166,700

96,355
85,451,482
2,356,305

228,809,737
2722747

494,706

$ 232,027,190

$ . 77,042,213
2,128,990
86,189,016

165,360,219

66,118,555
548,416

66,666,971

- $ 232,027,190
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JS1 Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Support and revenue:
Public support:
Global Fund
Government grants and contracts:
U.8. Government
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Other grants and contracts
Program income
Contributions
Net assets released from restriction
Gain on forgiveness of debt
In-kind project contributions
Other income
Interest income

Total support and revenue
Expenses:
Program services:
International programs
Domestic programs
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses:
Unallowable costs

Total expenses
Change in net assets without donor restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Contributions, net of net asset releases of $78,524

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7

$ 424,622,326

149,829,898
7.341,579
69,804,737
96,124
261,599
78,524
1,074,400
1,834,514
1,999
97,932

655,043,632

580,625,338

29137111

609,762,449

34,127,773

1,080,428

35,208,201

345,188
845,315,838

9,727,794

229,766

9,857,560

56,709,411

$ 66,666,971
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services
International Domestic Management
Programs Programs Total and General Fundraising Total

Commeodities $ 374,776,813 $ = $ 374,776,813 3 - $ - $ 374,776,813
Freight costs 34,169,444 - 34,169,444 - - 34,169,444
Salaries 28,610,134 14,840,513 43,450,647 10,036,241 893,143 54,380,031
Consultants 16,418,084 7,634,972 24,053,056 2,125,852 30,687 26,209,595
Cooperating national salaries 38,458,259 273,800 38,732,059 395,260 - 39,127,319
Travel 3,609,187 187,076 3,796,263 39,083 - 3,835,346
Allowance and training 3,801,160 132,510 3,933,670 531,959 - 4,465,629
Subgrants 18,307,467 700,914 19,008,381 50,553 42,873 19,101,807
Subcontracts 25,529,700 3,313,466 28,843,166 - - 28,843,166
Equipment, material and supplies 3,024,350 129,075 3,153,425 78,438 1,986 3,233,850
Other costs 30,461,762 1,924,785 32,386,547 20,054,427 111,739 52,552,713
Information technology 950 - 950 469,309 - 470,259
e Nen-commodity 1.606.244 . - 1,606,244 - - 1,606,244
Quality assurance 17,270 - 17,270 - - 17,270
In-kind project expenses 1,834,514 - 1,834,514 - - 1,834,514
Depreciation - - - 346,650 - 346,650
Total expense $ 580,625,338 $ 29137111 $ 609,762,449 $ 34127773 3 1,080,428 3 644,970,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and |

Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS'

Year ended September 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets )
Adjustments to recancile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
- Gain on forgiveness of debt
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables for program work
Décrease in field advances - program
Increase in employee advances
Increase in prepaid expenses
Ingrease in other assets
Increase in inventory
Decrease in accounts.payable and payroll withholdings
Decrease in accrued-vacation
Increase in advances for program work

Net cash provided by operating activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash eqﬁivalents af beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial stz

9

itement.

¥

9,957,560

(1,074,400)
87,708
346,650

(14,705,893)
3,691,792
(92,113)
(348,177)
"(229,776)
(8,230,710)
(10,600,522)
(84,561)
36,330,138

- 15,047,696

15,047,696

81,368,115

96,415,811
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2021

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the “Organization”) was incorfporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11, 1979.JS| Research and Training Institute, Ing. provides education and research
pnmarlly to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International D elopment ("AID") and the United
States Department of Health and Human Services. .

JS| Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (“Affiliates”). JSI Research and Trau!.ang Institute, Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of {appointment and removal of the
Affiliates’ board of trustees, the right to approve amendments {o the bylznt.rs and certificate of incorporation,
" and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfalni substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
" partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asig, Africa, and the United Statés, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of nort-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functiona! education with relevant problem-sdiving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, |n¢'s financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements, as of and for the year enfled June 30, 2021. i

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (*PfSCM®) was incorporated on February 14, 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as & non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training iInstitute, Inc. and Manage nt Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their refationship with PfSCM and

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfECM.

JSI Researcﬁ and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 5_01((:)(:3,)'0{
the Internal Revenue Code ('IRC") and file separate unconsolidated tax feturns. )

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Trainiag Institute, Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates {collectively referred 1o as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated if consolidation.

\ | ;

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training|institute, Inc..and its affiliates in
_ conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existenge or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Orgamzatlon and the changes thereof are classified and
-reported as follows: ' <

Net Assets Without Dorior Res!nctrons Net assets that are not subject to donor-impos’ed restrictions.

Net Assets With-Donor Restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Orgamzatlon
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or pyrpose.

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and |Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED:
" September 30, 2021

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amouhts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates. . i N

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in. banks and highly liquid investients with maturity dates of three
months or less 1o be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and clash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Tgtal cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,461,909 at September 30, 2021.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,040 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the bgok value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets. Propéty and equipment purchased with -
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant andfor donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period. |

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements i

In fiscal year 2021, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenug from Contracls with Customers, '
which outlines a single comprehensive revenue model for entities to usg in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. The guidance supersedes most current reveénue recognition guidance,
including indpstry-specffic guidance, and ensures that entities appropnately reflect the consideration to
which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, |by allocating transaction ‘price to
identified performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as perfprmance obligations are satisfied.
The Organization applied the standard using the modified retrospective transition method resulting in a
$2,275,600 reduction of net assets without restrictions as of the adoptior} date (October 1, 2020).

As part of the adoption of the ASU, the Organization elected to use| the following ‘transition practical
expedients: (i) completed contracts that begin and end in the same annyal-reporting period have not been
restated; (i} the Organization used the known transaction price for cofnpleted contracts; (iii) to exclude
disclosures of transaction prices allocated to remaining performance dbligations when the Organization
expects to recognize such revenue for all periods prior to the date of initial application of the ASU; and (iv)
the company has reflected the aggregate of all contract modifications thal occurred prior to the date of initial
application when identifying the .satisfied and unsatisfied performarjce obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price. . S

Revenue Recognition
Grants and Conlacts

. The majority of the Organization's revenueé are derived from contra@s, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malafia (the Global Fund), and U.S.
government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Departmeft of Health and Human Services.,
The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for ervices provided under exchange

and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts| and contributions are recognized.
as revenue in the period received in the apprapriate net asset category, Based on the existence or absence

11
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-JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and |Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENYTS - CONTINUED
-September 30, 2021

of donor imposed restrictions. If donor imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenue$ whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restrictign.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditiogs in the form of both a barrier to
entilement and a refund of amounts paid {(and a release from obligatign to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2021, the Organization had $247,832,020 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognlzed as revenue in the statements of actwutles

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance B
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized updn receipt by the customer.- As of
September 30, 2021, the Organization has $57,626,102 of deferréd revenue related to exchange
_transactions which W|II be recognized as revenue upon completion of dalivery of commodities and recelpt
by the customer. This deferred revenue in included within advances for grogram work in the accompanying
statement of financial position. ' - ‘ ) '

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contribufions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consclidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhaice non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 5 )

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that therej would be no malerial changes to
the results of its operations ‘or financial position as a result of an audit bg the applicable taxing authorities,

federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required réturns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions. |

JSI Research and Training Instiiute Inc., World Education, Inc. and PISCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Instltute Inc. and PISCM file tax?l)eturns based on a September 30
year ¢ end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end. :

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain gosts have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classificgtion includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expensgs attributable to more than one
functional.expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocatipn technigues.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI&ANCIAL STATEMEN
September 30, 2021

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local

Affiliates
TS - CONTINUED

currency. Expenses are translated

to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a

result, foreign currency transactlon gains and losses are negllglble ar
expenses.

Receivab!es for Program Work

- Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management

d are included as direct program

ixpects to collect from outstanding

balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts ithrough a provision for bad debt’

"~ expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its a
individua! accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after managem
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation aliowance and a
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2021 was $0. Includs
is $34,790,746 of amounts billed and $9,532,337 of amounts unbilled.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

i}essment of the current status of
nt has used reasonable collection

credit to accounts receivable. The
d in receivables for program work

'In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requirgl:s a lessee to'}eéognize a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The gmdance also expands the refuired quantitative and qualitative

disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal year
Organization is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consoli

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organizatidn maintains demand deposits and money market funds
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by t
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed s
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a

However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accol

believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTED - PROPE_R.TY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEP}

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balance

A

2023 for the QOrganization. The
Hated financial statements.

at financial institutions. At times,
ne United States government. The
lely by the assets of the financial
financial loss to the Organization.
nts in the past and management

iECIATIO_N
5 as of September 30, 2021:

Bocumulated

Cost Depreciation Net
Furniture and equipment $ 592816 % 583,779 § 8,037
Leasehold improvements 3,380,365 666,655 2,713,710
$ 3973181 $| 1,250,434 $ 2,722,747

Depreciation expense was $346,650 for the year ended September 30, 3

13
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN[TS - CONTINUED

September. 30, 2021

NOTE E - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK
Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2021:

Other - non-governmental: -
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation ' $ 19,139,937

Various donors 17,133,997
Global Fund ™ : 48,415,977
Doris Duke Charitable Foundation _ ; 1,499,105 -

$_86.189016

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typica:ly a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in(jaccord_ance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized. )

NOTEF - DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borfowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on August 17, 2021. The loan i§ payable on demand. Interest is
_charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2022 and annually thereafter is contingeint upon performance. The loan is
collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during 2021 and as a result, as of September 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is $0 and no interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2021.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1, 2019. Interest is charged by utilizing

a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan |s payable on demand and, in any - '

event, on or prior to June 30, 2022: The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year’
and as a result, as of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance ts $0. Nojinterest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act

. In April, 2020, World Education, Inc.’('WEI”.-) was granted a loan {the “Loan™) in the aggregate amount of
$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP7) under Division A, Title | of the.
CARES Act. ' :

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 23, 2020, was scheduled to mature on April 23, 2022
and bore interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly comr?encing’ in February 2020. Under
the terms of the PPP, the Loan was fully forgiven as of June 15, 2021, which is reflected as gain on
forgiveness of debt in the accompanying statement of aclivities.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

NOTE G - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
“are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.

Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to

the consolidated financial statements. ] .

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a.co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2021. '

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual pasis. As of September 30, 2021,
actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for.JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through
December 31, 2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30, 2018. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

nesses domestically and globally.
res to reduce operating expenses
spread of the virus and economic
is of the Organization.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of busit
In response the Organization implemented cost savings and other measy
and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncerainty of the continued

outlook, theré may be short-term and long-term implications for operatiol

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Donor restricted net assets of as of September 30, 2021 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE I'- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (“R&T") and John Snow, |Inc. (*JSI, Inc.”) {(a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole
stockholder of JSI, Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state
governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2021, JSI, Inc. billed R&T $22,395,454 for consulting services

(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - cdnsulting totaling $18,511,741 and .

program services - other costs totaling $3,888,435, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses.

In addition, during the year end September 30, 2021, R&T performed congulting services (technical support)
-for JSI, Inc. totaling $7,443,577. ; .

As of September 30, 2021 the R&T was owed $762,616 from JSI.

expenses. For the year ended
s (supporting services), of which

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead
September 30, 2021, R&T incurred $26,151,534 of overhead expensg
$10,887,356 was its share of JSI, Inc. incurred costs.

ng line of credit with an expiration
loan is collateralized by a security

R&T'is a co-horrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolv
date of May 31, 2022, which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The|

agreement with a first position lien on all corporate assets of R&T and
_ promissory notes and security documents between the two companies

15

JSI, Inc. including assignment of -
interest is charged by utilizing a




DocuSign Envelope 1D: B323009D-78CE-44B0-9308-2567B4389FF9

JS| Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

September 30, 2021

Affiliates

TS - CONTINUED

fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payabJe monthly in arrears, which at

September 30, 2021 was 2.09%. At September 30, 2021, there was no

World Education, In¢c. has an ag'reement with John Snow, Inc. whe
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc.

ended September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows: |

A_dmiriistrative and technical support
Other direct charges (including rent of $1,088,603)

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by eithg
to the other.

Other

The Organization has an agreement WItf'\ a related company to purchas
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows f
2021

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40% owned by
John Snow, Inc.)

putstanding balance on this loan.

y WEI, on arms-length terms as
nd John Snow, Inc. for the year

rgay John Snow, Inc. will provide

$ 1,671,428
1,493,832
$ 3,165,260

r party upon 90 days written notice

e services. Transactions with this
or the year ended September 30,

$ 1,564,751,

$ 1,564,751

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering substantlally all of its employees. R&T .

contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee’s monthly earnings,
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contribut
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement accour

lfunded with each month’s payroll.
ons made to the plan. Employees
t are automatically enrolled at 2% -

either at the time of hire; or annually in July. Pension expense was $2 656,279 for the year ended

September 30, 2021.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering sub
coniributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee’s monthly earnings,
Additional voluntary contributions may he made by the employees. Pa
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurr
$392,399 for the year ended June 30, 2021,

" NOTE K - COMMITMENTS
' Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for gener
expiring from 2022 through 2026. The leases conlain renewal options fo

16
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r periods of up to five years.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and|Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
Séptember 30, 2021

L

During the year ended September 30, 2021, rent expense under Ibng-term lease. obligations were .
$622,797. Fulure obligations over the primary terms of. the Comjpany's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2021 are:

2022 : ' ' $ 450,718

2023 396,612
2024 : 155,324
2025 160,680
2026 ' ’ 166,036

$_ 1320370

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 was $1,165,904. - j
NOTE L - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts ang grants with varicus departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization feceived 10% or more of its revenues and support from{the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2021:

% of Total

Revenue Income
. The Global Fund (PISCM) + - §| 424622326 ¢ 65%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI) $| 128,400,664 20%

- The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. feceived $128,400,664. from U.S.
Agency for International Development as of September 30, 2021, which fepresents approximately 55% of
total income for those entities, '

NOTE M - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

expenditures, liabilittes and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even andl ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management'’s review and approval. '

.. The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial asset£ to be available as its general

17
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and|Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN(S - CONTINUED
September 30, 2021

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2021, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donortimposed restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 96415811

Receivables for program work 44,323,084

Total financial assets available within one year 140,738,895

Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets 86,737,432
Total financial assets available to management for :

general expenditures within one year 5 _ 54001463

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 millign, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need. :

NOTEN - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2022, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On N vember 29, 2021, thé CEQ and
Founder of John Snow, Inc. donated his ownership interest in John Snow, Inc. and its affiliates to the
Organization. Accordingly the Organization became the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc., as such, it
will be included in the Organization's consolidated financial statements starting fiscal year 2022,

18
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Federal Grentor/Pass-through GrentorfProgram Title

J8! Research and Training Instituts, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARD3

Yuar ended September 30, 2021

AGuncy or Pass-through Numisr

U.8. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL IZ;EVELOFMENT
Direct Grant:
USAID Foreign Assistanca for Programs Overssss:
UGANDA NUMAT
NIGERIA TSHIP
SPRING
Advancing Partners
Live Laarn & Play
PAXISTAN HSSP
AIDSFree
TAMZANIA CHSS
ZamblalJSAIDDiscovarHesith
Tunor-Leste RBHS
Ghana HWVIAIDS
Madagascar CCH
* Bubd Healthy Cities
Pakistan IHSS-50
USAID Adv. Nutrition
Partnenships Pus
Kyrgyz Cura Tubercidosis
TIFA TB
OF DA CB PMC2 .
MRITE
CHSU
USAID/Leos MCH-N Activity

Pass-through Granl:

USAID Foraign Assistance for Programs Ovarseas.
Famity Heatth intematl
Farnity Haalth intemati
PRA
Heartdand Altiance Int1,
Heartland Alliance k'l
John Snow Haalth Zambla
NCBA CLUSA
PSCM
PSCM
Pakadium intsmatonal
Palladium intemations!
Paladium intemational
Pathfinde: Intarnational
The Trustses of TUFTS Col

‘1.8, AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT - Total

U.9. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Direct Grant:

Advancing System improvements for Key Issues in Women's Health

OHHS
DHHS

HIV-Relsted Training and Technical Assistance -
HRSA
HRSA
HRSA
HRSA
HRSA
HRSA

Family Planning Parsonnel Training -
FPNTC-SDI

Title X-NTC

T200AA18C00070
T200AA18CA00032
720115119CA00001
T200AA18CAD0013
720FDA1GRO0261
T200AA20CA00017
7200AA20CADOC0D
72043021CAD00 °

Tota! Direct Grants- USAID

EpiC VMMC CANT200AA1BCAD0002
EpiC Global T200AAIHC ABDOO2
USAID PRE Momentum 2¢ 7200AA20CA00003
HA! Nigaria TMA it 72082020CA00001
HAI Nigera TMA 20202021 72062020CA00001
2AM-Hoglth Activity 720611121CAQ0001
Senagal FTF Cult Nut 72088518CA00001
Global Fund PPM NIA ’
PSCM Clients NIA
Data FI T200AA 19CACO004
APHL HP+Grant AID-OAA-A-15-00051
HP+ APHLII AID-OAA-A-15-00051
Ethiopia TRANSFORM AIDBAIA 1700002
STOP Spliover’ T200AA20CA00032
Total Pass-through Grants- USAID

‘Womens Health-NTC ASTWH200090-01-00
Womens Heakh-NTC ASTWH200090-02-00
HIV integrated Ping UBDHAID144

HIV integrated Ping UBFHAI0144.04

HIV Integrated Ping UBOHAI0144-05
RWHAP ACE Health Ut UBIRAID143
Planaing CHATT USSHA3G0BS
Planaing CHATT UBIHAIB085-01

FPTPAD0S026-03
FPTPADOSO30

£17-A-00-08-00009-00
820-A-00-09-00014.00
AID-OAA-A-11-00031
AID-OAA-A-12-00047
AID-OBA-L-12-00003
AID-301-A-13-00002
AJD-OAA-A-14.00048
AID-B21-A-14.000004
AID-611-A-1600004
AlD-472-4-18-00001
AID-841-A-18-00007
AID-887-A:18-00001
AID-OAA-A-17-00028
AID-291-A-17.00002

20

Faderal
Assistance

Listings # Expendlitures

88.001
92,001
98.001
98,001
$8.001
8,001
$8.001
#8,001
$8.001
98,001
£0.001
98,004
8,001
98,001
£8.001
£8.001
8.001
08.001
08001
98.001
88.001
98.001

§8.001
98,001
98,001
84,001
96,001
8.001
£8.001
58.001
98.001
98.001
98.001
98,001
98.001
98,001

$3.088
© 93.088

93.145
93,145
93.145
83.145
93.145
83.145

63200
93.260

Federal

Total Subcontracl

Expensas
s (1,627 s .
(18,757 g
(14,812) (14.812)
(98.215) {70,508)
2.210) 2
4,885 .
(78.270) 2
1,300 -
22,422,542 324,779
485,087 B
4,581,558 1,145,853
4418221 254,815
1,184,732 483,923
10,000,808 1,590,485
21,724,218 8,703,057
2,580,072 2,485,053
3,875,035 858,560
3,220,601 1,000,180
353,540 2,581
8,781,001 2,848,903
3,034,431 203,749
10,378 :
. 84,245,300 20,884,730
890,332
~ 2175.008 .
1,888,248 ]
57,831 .
. 410284 .
258,420 .
298,067 .
3,020 .
794,388 =
1,608,778 .
32,688 -
242,852 18,800
4,910,628 -
922,488
14,266,987 16,800
98,512,293 20,801,530
2,275.441 220,000
5,578 -
2.281.019 220,000
128,311 9,500
185
550,693
76,802 15,000
90,508 43415
379,558 9,785
1228217 157,700
2328 .
2,857,035 44,000
2,850,381 44,000
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JS1 Research and Training institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS |

Yeoar ended Saptembar 30, 2021

Feadaral Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Tithe oir Pass-th Mui
Health Syslems Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care and Treatment -

HRSA RRHO UHSHA3G78Y

HRSA RRHO UH5HA30789-03

HRSA RRHO UHSHA3G789-04

Teenage Pregnancy Preventon Program

DHHS TPP-NTC 1 TRSAHO00006-01-00

DHHS TPP-NTC TPSAH000006-02-00
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants:

RWHAP ACE Heaith Lit UBSHA30143-04
HIV Care Formula Grants:

RWHAP ACE Health Lt VBIHA30143-06
Special Projects of Nationa! Significance:

88C for PWH and OUD UB0HA33180-01

S8C for PWH and OUD US0HAI3180-02

85C for PWH and OUD U20HA33190-03

Total Diract Grants- Department of Health and Human Services

Pass-through Grant:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

NH DHHS PHPS FY21 Agreement@7.00 20
Envirenmentat Public Heakth and Emergency Responsa:

MA Dept. of Public Health MDPH Asthma RFR 500224

NH DHHS PHPS18 Agresmemt@7.08 20

NH DHHS PHPS FY21 Agresment@7.09.20
Technical and Nor-Financial Assistance io Health Centars:

HRSA ' HITER U30C529366

HRSA HITEQ U30C529366-06

HRSA HITEQ U30C529386

HRSA HRSA HITEG ARP U3SFCS41778

Comm Hith Cr CT CHCACT Training FY21 Agreement@9. 1520

Comm Hith Ctr CT CHCACT UDS Agreemeni@9.14.21

Cooperative Agreaments to States/Territories for tha Coordination and Devalopment of Primary Care Officas:

State of Maina ME DHHS HPSA FY20 CDO-20-2215
Wyoming Dept. of Health WYPCOFY 20 ORH-0212-D
RI Dapt. of Health RIEPIFY21-28 7607811
njury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs -
RI Dept. of Health RIEP}FY21-26 7607611
Community Pregrams to Improve Minority Health Grant Program -
Boston Madical Center Project RECOVER Eval N/A
HiV-Related Training and Technica! Assistance:
National Alliance of Stat NASTAD EHE SCP Sub 2020-CO-326401-857
National Minority AIDS Co ELEVATE UBSHA20335
Chiidhood Lead Poiscning Prevention Projects, State and Locat Childhood Lead Poisoning
Prevention and Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children®:
NH DHHS PHPS FY21 Agreement@®7.09.20
NH DHHS PHPS FY22 Agreement®7.10.21

Family Planning Servicas:
MA Dept. of Public Health

MOPH FP Data Sys

1 FEPHPAOOB425-01-00

NH DHHS NH FP Data Systam FY18 05-95-90-802010-5530
NY Cept of Heaith NYS FP Training DOHO1-C33229GG-234500
Mississippi State Dept of Haalth MSDH FP Needs Assessment FPHADOG475-02-00

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities -

NH DHHS
NH DHHS

Substance Abuse and Mental Heatth Services Projects of Regional and National Significance:

Qral Health Promo
PHPS FY21

05-95-90-602010-45270000
Agreement@7.09.20

21

Federal
Assistance
Listings #

93.266
93 268
93.266

93.297
93.297

93.914
23.917

93.928
93.926
93.928

93.089

93.070
93.070
93.070

93.129
93.129
93.129
93.120
93.120
93.128

93,130
93.130
92.130

93.138

93,137

93.145
93.145

93.197
93.197

93.217
93.217
93.217
93217

93236
93.238

Federal
Expendityres

182,142
(488)
578,503

Total Subconiract
Expenses

770,158

1,302,843
4,035

1,308,878

{7,580)

275,175

(7.500)

38,000

@51}
2,104,805
105,015

359,021
20,482

2,200,259

379,503

40,920,508

831,703

87,793

85,740
(400)
68,115

40,520

133,455

40,620

80,258
851,282
83,218
13,950
591

863

d 148,133
30,816
3,908

808,842

183,854

22,500
39,986
4,986

77,482

58,480

28,384

82327
60,715

143,042

38,968
164,267

203,185

48,589
3842
263232
66,242

45445
2825

401,685

48,070

184,546
29,874

70,6800

224,420

70,600




Faderal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Action/Bosion Comm Devel
_ NHDHHS

South End Community

Signature Healthcare

Untversity of NH

Rl Dapt of Bev Hither Dev

Harbor Homas, Inc

Ta-County Community

‘Woonsockst Pravertion

Kent County Prevention

Enst Bay Regional

Newport County Prevantion

-Seuth County Prevention

RICARES

Rhode [stand Swdent

Harbor Homes, Inc

Immunization Cooparative Agresmants:

MA Dept, of Public Health
MA Dapt, of Public Heaslth
NH DHHS
NH DHHS
Nt DHHS

Crug-Free Communities Support Program Grants -

Boys & Girls Chub of Souh
East Boston Naighborhood

DocuSign Envelope ID: B323009D-78CE-44B0-9308:2567B4389FF9

JSI Reasarch and Training Insthute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended September 30, 2021

ABCD HIV/SA Eval

BDAS Centar SFY18
SECHC Qpilokis

Brockion QBAT

SVT TA- UNH Subaward
PFS FY20

Harbor Homas TCE MUD
RiHest Campaign'1
RIHost Campaign 2
RIHost Campalgn 4
RiHost Campalgn 5
R1Host Campaign 8
RiHost Campaign 7
RICARES RCSF Evaluation
RISAS R Suicice Prention
Harbor Homas GBHI

High Risk Aduit Imm
MIIS Suppor Dask
PHPS FY21

PHPS FY21

PHPS FY22

Souhegan Valley Eval

E Boston Vaps & M) Pray 1 .

Chitd Davelopment and, Surveliance, Rasaarch and Pravention -

Arcostook County Action

MEJVN

Epidemiclogy and Laboratory Cepacity for Infectious Diseases (ELC):

MA Dept. of Public Health
MA Dept. of Pubkc Health
NH DHHS
NH DHHS

National and State Tobacce Control Program

NH DHHS

Public Haalth Emergency Response: Cooperaive Agresment lor Emargency Responsa: Public

Health Crisis Response:
NH DHHS

243t Cantury Cures Act - Precision Medicine In.iﬁaﬁvo -

NH DHHS

Improving the Haalth of Amedcans through Prav

Diseass and Siroke:
CT Dapt of Public Health
GA Daept Public Heatth
MA Dept, of Puklic Heatth
HH DHHS
HH DHHS
Suste of Maine

MDPH HAI FY20

MA DPH Covid Dash Suppont
SORH NH Project Firstiine
PHPS FY22

SORH - Com Based Tob Prev

PHPS FY21

Qeal Health Promo

ention and Manageman: of Disbatas and Haart

CT Chronic Dissase

GA DPH CHW Natwork Dav
MOPH Diabates 3

Chronic Conditions

SORH Chronic Conditions
ME Pradiabates Markelng

Every Student Succaeds Act/Preschool Davelepment Grants

School Administrative Uni
United Way of Mass Bay

SAUz21 PDG
UWIGSNA

Agreement®1.11.19
92058501,
Agreemenif10.15.18
Agreamont10/1/18
1H78TI000192-01
3829405
Agreemeni}11,21,19
Agreementf)5.28.20
Agresmenyfe.05.20
Agresmentfhs.19.20
Agresment{5.14.20
Agresmantfs.14.20
Agresmentfs.19.20
Agresmentfd.4.21
Agraementg8.4.21
Agreemenig 12.4.18

CAPACITYBLD500824M04
. PRF81
Agreementf?.00.20
AgresmantfD?.09.20
Agreemanigl7.10.21

NiA
Agrasmant{})8 4,20

Agreementd7.23.18

500824
PRF83
Agreement12.1.20
Agresmentfl?,10.21

Agreamentgd11.5.20

Agresmentfy?. 09,20

05-95-90-902010-45270000

#2020-0021

. 40500-031.21213493
PFR 500224
Multiple- sea notas
Agreamantf4.5.21
1 NUS8DPO0BS545-04

2849

Innovatve Siate and Local Pubdic Health Sirategies to prevent and Manage Diabetes and Hears

Diseass and Stroke:
MA Dept. of Public Heatth
Colorado DPH

MDPH Diabetes
Siratagic Planning

RFR 580224

WELL-INTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN)

NH DHHS

SORH Chronic Conditions

Agreemeni@4.5.21

22

Fedaral
Asslstance

"g3.243
03.243
83243
93.243
53.243
83.243
63.243
£3.243
93243

61243

93.243
$3.243
93.242
§3.242
93.243
93,243

63.208
83.288
£3.208
93288
63288

83.270
63276

93312

63,323
83.323
63.322
93322

83,367

¢ 83354

23.388

93.428
93428
93,428
93428
93.428
03.426

93.434
93.434

92,435
93,435

93.438

Faderal

Agency or Pass-through Numbar Listings # Expendlitures

24,518
822,831
57,228
47,104
8,121
27,134
25,304
22,850
1,084
272
10,089
4732
4,998
9.843
2,854
43,019

Total Subcontract
Expenses

912,561

21,643
83,701
41,479
18,415
10,243

20,023

5,148

483,481

' 34,789

8,293
15.33¢

21832

18,071

152,410
125,698
114,964
122.443.

515,515

184,109

528,685

68,822

8.00%

2,253
' 18,830
28,260
53,514
108,612

90,227 -

40,204

11,680

609,705

51,884

7,875
54,445

82,420,

88,518
1,484

70,002

35,035
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SCHEDULE OF EXF.ENDrrUREs OF FEDERAL AWARDS
‘Year snded Septembar 30, 2021
Faderal
. . Assistance Federal Tolal Subcontract
Faderal Grantor/Pess-through GrantorfProgram Thie Agetcy o Pnn-lhmm Listings #  -__Expenditures Expsnses
Substance Usa-Disorder Prevention thal Promaotes Opioid Recovery and Treatment =
{SUPPORT) for Patients and Communities Act -
RI and Providenca Flantat RICLAS Caresr Pathways 3565688-1 63884 158,854 75903
PPHF; Racial and Ethnic Approaches to Community Health Program financed solely by Public
Pravantion and Heakh Funds
Lowsl Community Health Lowel REACH 932,738 59,087
Pravantve Health and Health Services Block Grant mded solsty with Pravention and Publc
Haahh Funds (PPHF);
Missouri Dpt of Hith & Sn BCBH FY21 C5202519001 §3.758 48,033 -
R Dept. of Health RIEP12018 7540784 93,758 41,678 .
87,714 =
Opilold STR:
"MA Dept. of Public Haslth SOR and CDC Grant PRFB1 93.788 383,247 -
NH Alcohod & Drug Abuse NHADA NH Stimulant Summit BOAS-21-22-S0R 93,788 43,285 .
RI Dept of Bav Hither Dav RIWFD SOR FY20 N/A 93.788 {1,868) s
o : 404,684 -
Paut Coverde!l National Acute Stroke Program National Cantas for Chronic Dissass Pravantion
and Haatth Promotion - i
MA Dept, of Public Haalth Coverdell Chart FY21 RFR 500224 93.810 35,587 s
MA Dept. of Public Health Stroke Chnrl_Audib PRFB1 93.810 8 -
35,593 =
Capacity Buliding Assistanca (CBA) for High-impact HIV Preventon: e
CICATELU ASSOCIATES, INC CDC HIP Training 92,0 62,688 .
CICATELLI ASSQCIATES, INC CAI PROMISE MINI TRAINING AGREEMENT @ 4.6.21 93.604 3,881 -
. 56,548 .
Matarnal, Infant and Early Chikihood Home Visiting Grant: .
NH DHHS PHPS FY22 Agreament7.10.21 93,870 48028 - -
National Biotarrorism Hospital Preparedness Program: : ]
NH DHHS PHPS FY21 Agresmantf?.00.20 93,086 049 .
NH DHHS PHPS FY22 Agreamentfl?.10.21 93.680 4158 s
VT Dapanment of Heatth 2020 VT C5C 36704 $3.880 24,545 -
j ) ? "29.653 -
Cancer Pravention and Control Programs for Siate, Teritorial #nd Tribal Organizations: 1
MA Dept. of Public Heath " Prostste Cancer Dlaparity 500224 ' 93.808 2877
NH DHHS . Oral Heakh Promo 05-95-20-902010-45270000 #3898 5,880 '
NH DHHS Clwonic Condiions Mutiiple- 344 notes 93,898 13,838 .
NH DHHS SORH Chronic Conditions. AgresmenifD4 5,21 93,888 . 21848 -
University of Vemmont UVMCC Pilot Evaluation AgrosmeniD4.27.21 93898 2,909 .
i 98,752 -
HIV Care Formula Grants: 4
MA Dept, of Public Health Policy Dov Eval QI CAPACITYBLOS500S24M04 2397 270,158 . .
MA Dept. of Public Haalth FY1THVQOA PRFB1 - 83917 1,359,370 378,087
1829.528 378,087
Special Projects of National Significanca:
National Aliarce of Sta1 . NASTAD - TAVIE Eval Pro] NiA . 93928 30419 24,085
Native Hawaiin Health Care Systems .
University of NH ) e . Buiding Futures Together T26HPIB482 93,932 25475 =
HIV Prevantion Activities Health Deparimant Based:
NH DHHS PHPS FY22 Agreemanif7.10.21 93840 18,044 =
MA Dept. of Public Heahh FY 17 HIiV QA PRF81 92,840 15,250 -
NH DHHS - PHPS FY21 Agrsemenif7.00.20 831,040 89,047 =
122,347 -
Asslsiance Programs for Chionk Dissase Prevention and Control;
NH DHHS Chronic Conditions Muttiple- 388 notes 93,845 25419 11,860
NH DHHS SORH Chronic Conditions Agreemeni(4.5.21 93845 5775 . C.
31,14 11,680
‘Block Grants for Pravention snd Treatment of Sub Abuse: ;
RI Department of Bahavioral Healthcars, RIPRC 1l 354204 63,859 310818 -
Davelopmeni Disablities and Hospitals
Sexualy Transmitted Diseases {STD) Prevention and Control Grants -
MA Deptl of Public Heatth MDPH Ratalle PRFEY . 93977 13,551
Prevantiva Health and Heatth Sarvices Block Grant:
Misscuri Dpt of Hth & Sn BCBH FY21 C5202519001 3991 15,488 -
NH DHHS Oral Haakh Promo 05-95-90-902010-45270000 g3.001 858,250 585,377
871,739 £85,377
23
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JS| Ressarch and Training insiitute, inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

z Yenr anded Seplember 30, 2021

Federal Grantor/PassAhrouih GraniorfProgram Title _Baaney of Plil-thm_ugu' Number
Matamal end Chikd Health Sarvices Block Grant 1o the States! ) .

R) Dept. of Haalth - RIEPI FY21-28 7807811

NH DHKHS PHPS FY21 Agreementfl)7 0%.20

University of NH SHAp! Subsward L0032

- Total Pass-through Grants- Department of Heatth and Human Services

U.8. DOEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - Total

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

TSCA Title IV State Lead Grants Certification of Lead-Based Paint Profassionals:
NH DHHS s PHPS FY21 Agreamanif)7.08.20
NH DHHS PHPS FY¥22 Agreemenigd?.10.21

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - Total

7 SNAP CLUSTER
Pass-through Grant: .
Community Food Projects g
Springtisid Community SCGHFP . Agresmenia/ 10720
“SNAP CLUSTER - Total

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Grant: .
,Boating Safaty Financiat Assistance;

U.8. Coast Guard Life Jacket Study 3I1OFAN119207
U.S. DEPARTMENRT OF HOMELAND SECURITY - Total

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Pass-hrough Grant; .
Education Stabakzation Fund

National Community Haalth NCHP Asizona Apresmenidl8.6.21
Hampton Universily HMPTN UNIV - VA Workforce

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- Total

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Olrect Grant; .
The U.S. Presidents Emargency Plan tor AIDS Rakef Programs -
U.5. Siste Dapartment DREAMS OGAC S-LMAQM-18-CA-1103

1.5, DEPARTMENT OF STATE - Tota!

.8, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass-through Grant:
Siste and Community Highway Safaty-

RI Departmaent of RIDOT-PREVCON 3665058
Office of Intarnational Sclance and Enginsering- total

Total Expendliures of Federal Awards

24

Fedaral
Axsistence

Fadaril

Listings # Expendhures

639084
T 93094
£3.964

88.707
68.707

10.225

67.012

84,425
84,425

19.029

20,800

Total Subcontracl
Expsnaes

58,787 =
54,803 i
21,312 . .
132,682 :
8,708,271 1,525098
20,828,778 2,338,801

88,307 28,330

19,473 2,505

85,870 30,835

B85.870 30,835

20,180

20,180 3
278.318 16,080
278,318 18,080

;

23,154 .
147,182 i
170,348
(80,935) (83,416)
(80,935} (83,416}

15,404 - 3

15,404 =

$ 119,630,250 $ 23,221,830
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JS| Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30, 2021

NOTE 1- BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanymg schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant

activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs: of t

federal government for the year

ended September 30, 2021. The information in this' Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulatlons Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,

Cost Principles, and Audit Reguirements. Federal Awards (Uniform

uidance). Because the Schedule

presents only a selected portion of the operations of JS| Research arid Training Institute, Inc., it is not’
intended to and does not présent the financial position, changes in net asgets, or cash flows of JSI Research

and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the agcrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expendltures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negatlve amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits, which management

has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the progra

to which they relate, made in the

normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such

adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented .

when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 40% de minimis indirect cost rate

allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

25
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@ GrantThornton

GRANT THORNTOH LLP

75 State Streel, 13" Floor _
Boston, MA 02109

D +1617 723 7900
F 1837723 2840

GT.COM

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
CIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS HEQU]RED BY GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'

We have audited, in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the

United States of America and the standarg
Government Auditing Standards issued by
States {Government Auditing Standards),

the Comptroller General! of the United
he consolidated financial statements of JSI

Research and Training Institute, Inc. and

ubsidiaries (the “Entity™), which comprise

the consolidated statement of financial pogition as of September 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activitigs, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 1022.

Report on internal control over financi:
In planning and performing our audit of th

reporting *
consolidated financial statements we

s applicable to financial audits contained in- .-

considered the Entity's internal control over financial reporting (“internal control™) as a
basis for designing audit procedures that dre appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressiig our opinion on the financial statements, but npt for the purpose
of expressing an opinien on the effectivengss of the Entity's interna! control,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectweness of the Enlity’s internal
control.

]

A deficiency in internal control exists wher{ the design or operation of a control does

"not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their

assigned-functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a gombination of deficiencies, in internal
contro!, such that there is a reasonable popsibility that a material misstatement of the
Entity's financial statements will not be pravented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,

" in internal control that is less sevete than 4 material weakness, yet |mportantenough

to merit attention by those charged with ggvernance.

Qur consideration of internal control was far the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and was nat dest
contro! that might be material weaknesses
limitations, during our audit we did not ider

gned to identify all deficiencies in internal
or significant deficiencies. Given these
tify any deficiencies in internal control that

we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant

deficiencies may exist that were not identif

ed,

Grant Thomton LLP I3 the U.S: member fin of Grant Thomton
are separate lopal entities and are not & worldwide partnership,

|ntemational Lid (GTIL). GTIL and each of iis member finns.
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@ GrantThornton

Report on compliance and other matter
As part of obtaining reasonable assurancej about whether the Entity's consolidated
financial statements are free from material|misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws] regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which ld have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our aud|t, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclospd no instances of noncompliance or other
matiers that are required to be reported urlder Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to desdribe the scope of our testlng of internal
control and compliance and the results of {hat testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internaf control or on compliance. This report is an

. integral part of an audit performed in accofdance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the Entity's intergal contral and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other pur

ot Thovdom LLF

~Boston, Massachusetts
June 24, 2022
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@ GrantThornton

ORANT THORNTON LLP
75 State Street, 137 Floor
Bosion, MA 02109

D +1617 723 7800
F o +1817 7233640

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Ol COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTR(
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each

Opinion on each major federal program

DL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

najor federal progfam

We have audited the compliance of JSI R
subsidiaries (the “Entity”} with the types of

search and Training Institute, Inc. aﬁd :
rmpliance requirements identified as

subject to audit in the U.$. Office of Management and Budget's OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Entlty s major
federat programs for the year ended Septanber 30, 2021. The Entity's major federal

‘programs are identified in the summary of guditor’s results section of the

accompanylng schedule of ﬁndlngs and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Entity complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to abova that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programg for the year ended September 30, 2021.

. Basis for opinion on each major federallprogram

We conducted our audit of compliance in @ccordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of imerica (US GAASY); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in fovernment Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United Statis (Government Auditing Standards); and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Codg of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our respensibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described inthe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the releyant ethical requurements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinign on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal detérmination of the Entity’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referredito above.

Other matter — federal expenditures notlincluded in the compliance audit
The Entity’s consolidated financial staternants include the operations World
Education, inc. (“WEI"), which expended $£9,799,901 in federal awards for the period

from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, thatis
expenditures of federal awards during the |
compliance audit, described in the Opinion

not included in the Entity's schedule of
vear ended September 30, 2021. Our
on Each Major Federal Program section of

GT.COM

Grant Thomiton LLP s the U.S. member firm of Grant Thomton §
ar separate fegal entities and are not a worldwide parnership,

smational Lid (GTIL). GTIL and each of its moember firms
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@ Grant Thornton

separate audit of its compliance with the

s of compliance requirements described

our report, does not include the operation:E: WEI because WE| was subjected to a

in the OMB Compliance Supplement for th
2021.

Responsibilities of management for co
Management is responsible for complian

and for'the design, implementation, and m
compliance with the requirements of laws,

period from July 1, 2020 to June 30,

pliance

with the requirements referred to above
intenance of effective internal control over
tatutes, regulations, rules and provisions

of contracts or grant agreements applicablp to the Entity's federal programs.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit gf comphance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirgments referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinitin on the Entity's compliance based on our .

" audit. Reasonable assurance is a high levgl of assurance but is not absolute

assurance and therefore is not a guarantéé that an audit conducted in accordance
with'US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fra d is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgary, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of mtemal control. Noncompllance with the

substantia! likelihood that, individually or irf the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Entity's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

-compliance requirements referred to abov{ns considered material if there is a

in performing an audit in accordance with IS GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

» . Identify and assess the risks of matersal noncompliance, whether due 1o fraud or
error, and design and perform audit pjocedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a tgst basis, evidence regarding the Entity’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to-above and performing
such other proceduras as we considefed necessary in the circumstances.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal cgntrol over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal contro! ober compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on'the
effectiveness of the Entity's mternal céntrol over compliance. Accordmgly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with thosi2 charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope
deficiencies and material weaknesses in i
identified during the audit.

1d timing of the audit, and any significant
ternal control over compliance that we
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@ Grant Thornton

Report on internal control over ¢

ompliance

A deficiency in internal control over compli
a control over compliance does not allow

- course of performing their assigned funcli

ance exists when the design or operation of
anagement or employees, in the normal
s, to prevent, or detect and correct,

noncompliance with a type of compliance tequirement of a federal program on a

timely basis. A material weakness in inte

| contro! over compliance is a deficiency,

or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is

a reasonable possibility that matenal nonc
requirement of a federal program will not

pliance with a type of compliance
prevented, or detected and corrected, on

a timely basis. A significant deficiency in ir’flernal control over compliance is'a "’

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencie
type of compliance requirement of a feder:
material weakness in internal control ovar
attention by those charged with governan

Our consideration of internal control over
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
and was not designed to identify all defici
that might be material weaknesses or sign
during our audit we did not identify any de
compliance that we consider to be materi
However, material weaknesses or signifi
compliance may exist that have not been i

Qur audit was not designed for the purp
effectiveness of internal control over comp
expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Cor
the scope of our testing of internal control
testing based on the requirements of the U
not suitable for any other purpose.

Dot Thaudon LLF

" Boston, Massaéhusetts

June 24, 2022

. in internal control over compliance with a
program that is less severe than a
mpliance, yet important enough to merit

ompliance was for the limited purpose

or the Audit of Compliance section above
cies in internal control over compliance
ficant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
ciencies in the Entity's internal control over
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

nt deficiencies in internal control over
entified.

of expressing an opinion on the
fiance. Accordingly, no such opinion is

trot Over Compliance is solely.to describe -
nver compliance and the results of that
niform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and|Affiliate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

SECTION |- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on whether the financial statements '
audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP nmaodified

Internal control over financial reporting: .

* Material weaknesses identified? ' o]

+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? one noted
« Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? o
Federal Awards | |

Internal control over major programs:
+ Material weaknesses identified? No

« Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None noted

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Wnmodified

. Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR :
section 200.51(a). ' 0

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listings Number ame of Federal Program
98.001 ' oreign Assistance for Programs
- verseas

Dollar threshotd used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs: - 3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? o

31
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION Il - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.

32
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and| Affiliate
STATUS OF PRIOR _YEAR’S FINDINGS AND QUESTIQNED COSTS

September 30, 2021

Finding

Number Finding Surﬁmary ; Status

2020-001 Certain Partnership for Supply Chain Management Management has
accounts receivable and deferred revenue implemented processes and -
amounts were improperly recorded in the fiscal year . | controls such that this finding

2020 financial statements, prior to being identified and | did not reoccur in 2021,
adjusted as part of the audit process. i

33
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
- Board of Trustees

Margaret Crotty, MPH, MBA
President & CEO
15) ’ &

Abdourahmane Diallo, MD, MPH
Kenya Representative
World Health Organization

sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

‘Boston University School of Public Health
- Chair of the Board

Chair, Board Governance Committee

Hafiz Adamjee
Chair, World Education, Inc. Board

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.
William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of
Management

- Whartoen School at University of Pennsylvania

Updated January 2023
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CHRISTIN H. D’OVIDIO
JSI Northern New England, 501 South Street, Bow, NH 03304

christin_dovidio@jsi.com:
- healthcommunication.jsi.com
EDUCATION
YALE SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Climate Change and Health Certificate, 2020

LONDON SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICAL SCIENCE
Certificate Degree, MBA Essentials, 2020

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA '
Graduate Certificate Degree, Social Marketing for Public Health, 2013

NEW SCHOOL FOR SOCIAL RESEARCH, NYC
Mastér of Fine Arts, Acting & Fine Arts Production, 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
CERTIFIED COMMUNICATOR IN PUBLIC HEALTH (CCPH)
National Public Health Information Coalition, 2015- current

EXPERIENCE
JSI1 Rescarch and Training Institute, Inc., Northern New England
Senior Marketing and Communications Project Director, 2016-present

AtJSI I have lead and supported multip]e dynamic teams of talented and dedicated gaff who all reach towards the goal of”
ensuring health equity across diverse populations and continents.

National Healthy Start Branding and Communications Team Member (20‘6-2017)

Served as branding and communications team lead to provide capacity building assistance and technical instruction in media
and marketing to approximately 100 Healthy Start grantees, to ensure program gffectiveness in achieving the goals of
reducing infant mortality, reducing health disparities and improving perinatal h ialth outcomes. Included TA to grantees for:
communication and marketing training, marketing plan development, and socia? media guidance. This project reported to the

Maternal and Child Health Bureau, Division of Healthy Start and Perinatal Services, Washington, DC.

East-Boston Youth Training & Vaping Cessation Marketing (2020-present

Project Director: Oversee a team of five to develop and implement a middle an high school youth training in marketing

research and strategy create and execute a vaping cessation campaign for the Eajst Boston community of at-risk youth. This

project implements a youth-training model co-developed by myself, and JSI team members, and combines our years of

market research regarding youth and youth vaping formative research to create § cessation campaign with the youth as well
" as the incorporation of: participatory design, virtual training, youth engagement| and brand ambassadors (or micro-

influencers). -

The Partnership @drugfreeNH (2019-present) ' ;
Project Director and Creative Producer: The Partnership is a public-private collijboration between NH DHHS, the NH
Governor’s Commission on Alcohol & Other Drugs, the NH Charitable Founda ion, the Center for Excellence on Addiction,
and JSI Northern New England. The work includes donations from the public agd'a SAMHSA Land Grant with the
University of New Hampshire. The goal of The Partnership is to share scientifid evidence about prevention and substance
misuse, and create a space for individuals to find answers and solutions to deal fith substance use disorders. Work includes
community engagement, strategic communications, digital marketing, social m keting, communication training and
technical assistance, podcast production/hosting, public relations, web development, and conference planning.

VT Mentally Healthy (2021-present)

Project Director: Project Goal: To influence the actual and perceived community support for people dealing with their mental
health in the Greater St. Johnsbury area of Vermont with a communication campaign. Working with the Mentally FHealthy
Collaborative Actiori Network, JSI is conducting research and making recommendations on messaging and elements for
testing. Ultimately, JST will produce campaign elements for the Network to use.

ENDS/Vaping Prevention Social Marketing for Middle and High School Yguth (2018-present) ’
Project Director: Oversee a team of six-eight to determine school-aged peer crojvd representation in New Hampshire as well
as ENDS/vaping risk behavior prevalence among peer populations. Save Your Breath campaign/web development and
execution for vaping prevention school aged youth found most at-risk. The projgct includes: strong community and partner
collaboration, IRB consideration and approval, market research, survey develepment, independent evaluation, influencer

P

§JSI: ’ C. D’Ovidio |
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marketing, campaign development, production, podcast and Facebook live pron

Maternal Marijudna and Alcohol Awareness Campaign (2017-2021)
Project Director, Creative Director: Oversee a team of six implementing a lifest
marijuana and alcohol use before and during pregnancy and breastfeeding as we

otion.

ile cahpaign with messaging around
11 as tool development for health care

professionals and working with the cannabis dispensaries. Formative research igicludes online survey testing (MaxDiff,

conjoint), focus groups, interviews, UX and digital a/b testing. Creative develof
The campaign, Today is For Me., won the 2019 Berreth Silver Award - in Corp
Pubtlic Health Information Coalition. Work includes collaboration with the NH
Other Drugs, Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force,

Young Adult Alcohol Harm Reduction Campaigns (2016—present)
Project Director, Creative Director: Oversee a team of six, conducting formativy
beliefs relative to substance use via peer crowd/group segmeéntation in NH youn
survey, focus groups (live and virtual) and digital a/b testing. Creative developr
campaign development, market research, and influencer marketing. Three camp
segments. Binge-Free 603 received the 20/8 Berreth Gold Award — for Excelle
Public Health Information Coalition.

Rivier University, Division of Nursing and Health Professions, Nashua, New Ha
Adjunct Professor, 2016-present

Statc of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Concord,
Marketing and Media Specialist (Tobacco Prevention & Cessation, As!hma Control
2008-2016

Salmon Press Newspaper Group, Merednh New !Iampshlre
Classifieds Manager, 2007 — 2008

Theatrical Public Relations and Production, New York City .
Producer, Head of Marketing, Media Relations and Advertising, 2000 - 2005

PUBLICATIONS
Bradley M, D’Ovidio C, Kipligat S, New Hampshne Women's Perceptions of
- and Afier Pregnancy. (January 2018).

/ORAL PRESENTATIONS

D'Ovidio, C.].

Substance Exposure Task Force. Virtual, [Bradley, M., D'Ovidio, C.].

Do NH Youth Vape? Clinical and Population Health Interventions to Support
Behavioral Health Summit. Virtual. [Brown, T., D'Ovidio, C., Morton, J.].
Save Your Breath: NI Youth Vaping Prevention Campaign Overview (2020).
Transfer Center Network, Virtual. [D'Ovidio, C., Morton, J.}."

Community Conversations on Vaping - Youth Voices Podcast (2020). Media P

HONORS AND AWARDS

Coalition.
Wisconsin, We need to Talk — About Youth Sex Trafficking (2019) Berreth Bro

Today is For Me., The MAMA Pr ofect (2021). NH Govemor’s Commission on|

" Toduay is FFor Me. (2019) Berrelh Sitver Award - in Cor, porate Health Marketin

ment includes video production and digital.
orate Health Marketing from the National,
liovernor’s Commission on Alcoheol and

t research around knowledge, attitudes and

g adults including: literature review, online
nent includes video production, digital

aigns have been developed for priority market
ice in Health Marketing from the National

mpshire

New Hampshire
Oral Health, Coordinated Chronic Disease),

Marijuana and Alcohol Use Before, During

The MAMA Project for RSA 1 32:2‘(202 1). NH Therapeutic Cannabis Medical Oversight Board. Virtual. [Bradley, M

Alcohol and Other Df-ugs, Perinatal
Vouth ENDS Cessation (2020). NH
Wew England Prevention Technology

pwer Youth. Virtual.

7. National Public Health Information

hze Award for Exceﬂence in Public Health

Marketing, Not-for-Profit Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition.

Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason? (2018) Berreth Gold Award for Excelld
- Public Health Information Coalition.
Tick Free NI - Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention in New Hampshire (204
Health Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition,
Anyone Anytime NH™ Campaign (2016). U.S. Department of Health and Hum
Facing Addiction in America: The Surgeon General’s Report on Alcohol, Drug
November 2016.

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS/VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

nce in Public Health Marketing. National -
7) Berreth Award - Bronze Medal, Corporate

an Services, Office of the Surgeon General,
rs, and Health. Washington, DC: HHS,

Society for Health Communication, Founding Member; International Social Marketing Association; Nationa] Public Health

Information Coalition, Member & Certifier; New Hampshire Public Health Associat

fon.

JSE

haxt
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BocuSign Envelope I1D: B323009D-78CE-44B0-9308-2567B4389FF9

CHRISTINA CURELL, MPH

New York, New York -

EDUCATION

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY MAILMAN SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Master of Public Health, Health Promotion, Research & Practice’

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Additional Major: International Developmie

EXPERIENCE

JSI Rescarch & Training Institute, Bow, New Hampshire (remote)
Health Communications Consultant, September 2022-Present

The Partnership @drugfrecNH (September 2022-present)
Health Communications Consultant: The Partnership is a public-private.co
Governor's Commission on Alcohol & Other Drugs, the NH Charitable Fol
Addiction, and JSI Northern New England. The goal of The Pannership is
and substance misuse, and create a space for individuals to find answers an
disorders. Work includes strategic communications, digital marketing, soci
alcohol harm-reduction with young adults (Binge-Fiee 603, Sober Curious,)

use prevention for people who are, or may become, pregnant (Today Is For

ENDS/Vaping Prevention Social Marketing for Middle a;d High Schod

christina. curell@jsi.com

-—

L]

llaboration between NH DHHS, the NH
indation, The Center for Excellence on

o share scientific evidence about prevention

d solutions to deal with substance use

al marketing, and web development related to .
and Take A Break NH), as well as substance-
Me).

b1 Youth (September 2022-present)

Health Communications Consultant; Project Manager: Save Your Breath apd My Life, My Quit campaigns web

development and execution for vaping prevention school aged youth found
community and partner collaboration, audience rcscarch marketing, campa
reportlng

Community-Based Partnership for Comprehensive Tobacco Control

Health Communications Consultant; Project Manager: responsible for mark

processes and deliverables, overseeing reporting, and scheduling managem

campaign including content creation, web updates and strategy for adult sm

. OPTIONS Maine (September 2022-present)
Health Communications Consultant; Project Manager; Community Engagel

" coordinated effort of the Office of Behavioral Health (OBH) and other statg
fesidents who use substances through harm reduction strategies, helping thq
reducing the number of fatal and non-fatal drug overdoses. This work will
campaign (o help reduce fatal drug overdoses, decrease stigma, and connec
and serves as Community Engagement Lead and point person for subcontrd
research process and data synthesis for communications recommendations;
assistance team to coordinate efforts; oversees development of campaign m

Parcnts Against Vaping e-cigarettes (PAVe) New York, NY

Educational Programs Director; Director, Vapes Are Trash Campaign
Created and exécuted multi-channel communications campaign including message n
and content, original photography. Developed educational program and training mat
of 50+ events per year. Qversaw development and execution of annual high-level, 2
program content, speakers, promotion for 2k+ audience. Wrote strategic plan and gr
Managed associate-level staff and interns supporting educatiohal programming and

Freclance Health Promotion and Health Communications Consultant New Yor
{2019-2022)
Prowdc research, writing and communications services to private, non-profit and ac

most at-risk, The project includes: strong
gn development, content production,

eling project management, including tracking
ent meetings. Oversees QuitNowNH
oking cessation.

ment Lead. The OPTIONS project is a
agencies to improve the health of Maine
m on the road to recovery, and dramatically
esult in a public health informational

I individuals to recovery. Manages project
ctor; assists PD in management of formative
collaborates with program technical

aterials and approvals processes with client.

esearch and development, strategy, creative
erials for national scale-up; manage program
[+ session virtual conference; managed

ant proposal and reporting materials.’
campaigns:

K, NY

hdemic clients (research, academic writing,

] :

B

B

CCurell 1
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email, web, blog and social cohtent)

Vital Strategies New York, NY '
Communications Associate 2014-2019) e
Collaborated with global program staff on the development, execution and evaluatign of strategic health communications,
campaigns. Managed global data collection in partnership with World Health Organfzation. Managed advocacy campaign focused
on the tobacco industry and advertising partners: developed and executed strategic glan across digital, eamed media and events;
managed redevelopment of campaign website, managed social strategy, led partner putreach and engagement. Coordinated global
training program: Collaboratively developed training model and related products, oyersaw workshop development, facilitated
trainings. Developed written materials: briefs, reports, blogs, social content, press p:lches Dcvclopcd and managed online library
of communications materials.

United States l?eace Corps Rural Ecuador

HIVIAIDS and Community Health Volunteer (2010-2012)
Developed and executed community health events in coordination with local stakehplders, providing HIV testing and pretest
counseling; developed and taught community fitness classes augmented with comm{inications materials on health and nutrition;
Created youth leadership development group in collaboration with Child and Adolcrccnt Counsel; conducted wcckly HIV
prevention youth group.

PUBLICATIONS/ PRESENTATIONS

The Tobacco Atlas. 5* Edition, 2015; 6™ Edition, 2018

WHQ Report on the Global Tobacco Epidemic. 2015, 2017, 2019
Fool Me Twice: an NCD Advocacy Report (2017) :
Quit Big Tobacco: Taking on Big Industry through their Friends in Advertising and)PR (2019)

LANGUAGE SKILLS

Spanish, written and oral fluency

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCES

Desk Exchange Community Animator, Centre for Social Innovation, 2019 .
Communications Volunteer, Voters Not Politicians (MI), 2018

Tutor, Reading Partners, 2017-18

Patient educator, Young Men’s Clinic, NY Prcsbylenan 2014

!I

CCurell 2
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SYBIL MASSE, MPH, CHES

JS1 Research & Training Institute, Inc.

501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 -

EDUCATION

CUNY Graduate School of Public Health and Health Policy- MPH Commumty Health B

SUNY Albany- B.S. Biology

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Health Education Specialist - National Commission for Health Education Cred

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Bow, New Hampshire (remotc)
Health Communications Consultant, April 2023-Presént

Contributes and guides strategic marketing campaigns, including designing adver]

reporting, and providing guidance to subcontractors on community engagement a
Community-Based Partncrship for Comprchensive Tobacco Control
Health Communications Consultant; responsible for marketing project content

sybil_masse@yjsi.com

ducation 2020 | New York, NY

2014 | Albany, NY

entialing 2021

lisements and campaign strategies and
d communications.

anagement and messaging, including tracking

processes and deliverables, and scheduling meetings and taking notes for the VAPE Schools project. Contributes to QuitNow-
NH, DearMe-NH,.and QuitWorks-NH campaigns including content creation, e ail marketmg, web updates and strategy for

adult smoking cessation.
Lyme Discase Prevention Marketing Campaign

Program Manager to develop a grass-roots and social marketing campaign to red
in NH. This project identifies priority audiences affected by tick bites, best-prac
"channels for grass-roots interventions, and effective educational outreach materi
Bronze Award - in Corporate Health Marketing from the Natlonal Public Health

CDC- Health Communications Fellow

Created outbreak notices, talking points and sociat media content to alert the geney
Collaborated with CDC creative services to design graphics and prevention materi
safety information. Managed CDC’s foodborne outbreak table'with weekly webpal
1o produce CDC’s food safety alert video reels.

WomenHeart- Digital Communications Consultant

uce tick encounters and cases of Lyme disease
ice outreach strategies, partner communication
pls. Tick Free NH won the 2017 Berreth
information Coalition.

August 2021- April 2023| Atlanta, GA

al public about foodborne disease outbreaks.
pls to communicate relevant food and pet
e updates. Coordinated script and filming task

May 2021-April 2022 | Remote

Outlined social media calendar to execute campaigns that promoted wellness, elevated awareness, and reduced the risk of

women's heart disease. Created social media graphics and copy for campaigns in 3
Association to promote specialized health awareness weeks. Revamped website to
partnerships. Hosted live interview sessions using the Stream Yard platform, ensu
and rehearsing with guests.

CUNY Graduate School of Public Health and Health Policy- Capstone

Created a communications and advocacy plan to raise awareness and advocate for
Planned sample social media campaign, partnering with Black influencers to use t
Curated Instagram and Twitter content to communicate facts and symptoms and s
targeted hashtags. Designed a plan to solicit donations for the Lupus Foundation ¢
Analytics to track donations and campaign reach.

Goldman Sachs-Aramark- Food Safety Maﬁagcr

Partnered with client and facilities management team to reduce risk and exposure

artnership with the American Heart
highlight collaborative projects and strengthen
ing seamless delivery by drafting manuscripts

Project Spring 2020 | New York, NY

funding for Lupus research for Black Women.

heir platform to educate others on the disease.

ategized how o maximize user reach with
America, which included using Google

November 2019-July 2020 | New York, NY

o food, property, and environmental hazards.

ETSE
Eisdn
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Facilitated training and posted cautionary materials, including pictures, posters, ard infographics to educate staff on safety
protocols. Communicated in plain language to reach a broad audience. Managed fifty team members, ensuring that employees
complied with food safety regulations. Performed quality assurance audits to meeljrequired state and government agency
standards. Chaired COVID-19 safety initiative by developing action plans and saféty training for staff regarding new protocols. '

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE
Tcahn School of Medicine at Mount Sinai- Research Associate
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene- Public Health Sanitarian I

SKILLS

April 2019-Present | New York, NY
“January 2016-November 2019 | New York, NY

Proficiency in: Clinical Research, Cross-Functional Collaboration, Canva, Dedoose Sofiwpre, Hootsuite, Project Management,

Qualitative Research, REDCap, Sprout Social, Qualitative Research
" Experience with: WordPress

SMasse 2
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NicoLE R. CHUTE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 0330+ HEENEENNEEN

EbpucaTionN
CoLsy-SawvER COLLEGE, NEW LONDON, New Hampsting
Bachelor of Science, Piblic Health, 2017

EXPERIENCE

JSI Rescarch & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Ct_mimunity Health Institute
Health Communication Specialist, September 2022 to Present

Develops strategic digital marketing campaigns, including designing and deploying
campaign strategies, conducting campaign data analysis and reporting, and providing
digital tools and trends.

Overdose Prevention Through Intensive Outreach Nalexone and Safety

nikki_chute@jsi.com

Higital marketing advertisements and
b recommendations on the use of emerging

F (OPTIONS) - Mainc DHHS OBH

Serves as a Digital Strategist supporting efforts to develop and implement g public health informational and intervention

campaign for reducing fatal drug overdoses and to connecting individuals v

vith Substance Use Disorder'to resources

related to harm reduction, treatment, and recovery while reducing the stigmla around drug use. Leads organic digital

strategies, supports paid digital strategies, and supports digital strategy repd

The Partnership @drugfreeNH

Serves as Digital Strategist to coordinate drug, alcohol, and tobacco preven
use prevention professionals and organizations. Leads organic digital strate
supports blog. '

Community-Based Partnership for Comprehensive Tobacco Control
Serves as Digital Strategist to promote eLeaming modules and educational
opportunities to healthcare providers around evidence-based strategies of a
cessation approach for youth and adults. Leaders organic and paid digital st
writing.

Mass Media Vape Prevention
Serves as Digital Strategist to increase the capacity of site-specific substang
treatment in the clinical setting as part of substance use disorder treatment.

Access, Care, and Engagement Technical Assistance (ACE TA)

Serves as Communications Lead to build the capacity of the Ryan White H
navigate the changing health care landscape and help people with HIV to a¢
health outcomes. Leads development and dissemination of newsletters, wekb
supports conferences and meetings. ' .

PasT EXPERIENCE

rt writing,

ion messaging for the network of substance
bies, leads digital strategy report writing, and

videos that provide distance learning
comprehensive tobacco prevention and.
rategies and supports digital strategy report

e use treatment providers to deliver tobacco

V/AIDS Program (RWHAP) community to
cess and use their health coverage to improve
inar promotion, website updates, and

hua, NH

City of Nashua Division of Public Health and Community Services, Naj

Health Promotion and Communication Specialist | December 2019 - Augusy 2022

Planned, organized, and implemented communication strategies to improvg
Greater Nashua Region. Developed marketing campaigns utilizing a variety
materials, billboards, bus advertisements, newspapers, radio, television, ang
Information Officer to disseminate timely and accurate health public inforn
statewide stakeholders to provide health recommendations, data, resources,
website and a strong social media presence among several platforms. Provi
organizing, hosting, and attending events, outreach tables, conferences, pre
maintain the company brand, including hosting internal trainings, updating

the health and well-being of residents in the
of communication platforms including print
digital marketing. Served as the Public
ation. Communicated with regional and

and services. Maintained the company

Hed health education to the community by

ientations, and training. Trained staff to

templates, and creating presentations.

N. Chute Page 1
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City of Nashua Division of Public Health and Community Services, Nathua, NH

Public Health Network Services Program Assisiant | June 2017 - Decembey 2019

Assisted in timely completion of grant deliverables, grant proposals, and reports. Coordinated and provided support for
meetings, events, training, and exercises. Prepared and disseminated infor ation, resources, and data to regional
partners. Assisted in development of work plans, tracking tools, policies, afd guidance, Planned and participated in
outreach activities and health promotion events. ) '

" SELECTED PRESENTATIONS
% Increasing child blood leave level testing using a health equity approach: A community-wide effort (2021) American
_Public Health Association Annual Meeting, Virtual o

% Greater Nashua 2020 Community Health Assessment; An innovative Apprave to Community-Based Data Sharing {2020)
American Public Health Association Annual Meeting, Virtual

%+ Community Conversation: Understanding Substance Use Disorder in Gredfer Nashua, NH (2020) American Public
Health Association Annual Meeting, Virtual

SELECTED HoNORS | AwarDS
% 2017 Colby-Senwyer College Public Hedlth Qutsianding Student Award

COMPUTER SKILLS

Microsoft Office

G Suite (Google)

Adobe Creative Cloud (basic)

SKILLS

Advertising (Digital, Radio, TV, Transit, Billboard)

E-mail Marketing (Constant Contact, SendInBlue, MailChimp} .
Social Media Management '

Content Creation (Canva)’

Content Writing

Digital Reporting

TRAININGS AND CERTIFICATES

FEMA 1S-100, 18-200, [S-300, 15-400, 1S-700, 1S-800-

FEMA G290: Public Information Officer Basic

FEMA 1S-42.A: Social Media in Emergency Managcment

NH DHHS BDAS Initial Training on Addiction and Recovery
© NH DHHS BDAS Families and Addiction

el N. Chute Page 2
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JULIANNE BATTISTA

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d.b.a. Community Health Institute
501 South Street, 2™ Floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304

EbucATIiON

PLYMOQUTH STATE UNIVERSITY
Bachelor of Fine Arts, Graphic Design

EXPERIENCE

JS1 Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health lnstitutc, Bow,
Digital Marketing Strategist & Designer, March 2020 to present

My Life My Quit NH, State of New Hampshire
Digital Strategist, September 2021 to Present

Using paid ads across social platforms as well as creating momhly orgamc calendars|
and advertising free quit coaching for teens in NH,

Social Host RI, State of Rhode Island

Digital Sirategist & Video Editor, June 2021 10 Present
. Working with the project team to populate and schedule editorial calendars of conter]

edited video content used for advertising for Rhode Island’s Social Hosting laws to |

Youth ENDS Prevention, “Save Your Breath”, State of New Hampshire.
Digital Strategisi & Graphics Designer, March 2020 te July 2021,

Using major social platforms to advertise such as Instagram, YouTube, and TikTok,
13-18) to prevent the use of ENDS devices.

Binge-Free 603: What’s Your Reason, Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention
Digital Strategist & Graphics Designer, March 2020 10 March’2021
Advertising across social platforms to encourage college aged students to consume g

Julianne_battista@jsi.com

New Hampshire

highlighting the dangers of ENDS devices

t throughout the campaign. In addition,
revent underage drinking.

his is a campaign aimed at youth (aged

Campaign

lcohol less frequently and more responsibly.

In addition, assisted in the re-design and launch of the spin-off campaign, Sober Curjous, which ran through March 2021,

OTHER EXPERIENCE

Work It Daily, Hampton, New Hampshire
Influencer Marketing Manager, November 2019 to February 2020
Managed and created content for influencer pages on Linkedin, Twitter, Instagram, T

[ikTok, YouTube, and Pinterest totaling over

2.7 million followers and reaching an audience of over 3 million. [n addition, collabprated with a team on the design and
execution of a new influencer brand strategy and collected data to track its performahce.

JT Graphics, Thornwood, New York

Graphic Designer, June 2019 10 November 2019
Designed and updated marketing materials for print shop clients. Communicated reg
needs and how to best meet them in a timely manner.

Plymouth State U'niw:rsit}r Plymouth, New Hampshire
Graphic Designer, June 2019 to November 2019
Created and collaborated on a variety of marketing campaigns for the Umversuy s5u¢

utarly with clients to discuss their design

h as event flyers, banners, stickers, social *

media filters, and sticker designs. Adhered to strict brand guidelines and communicdted with team and clients to ensure the needs

of the University were met.
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SKILLS
Ilustrator
Premiere
Photoshop
InDesign
AfterEffects
Social Media
YouTube
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Christin D’Ovidio Project Director $125,000 1380 $16,826

Christina Curell Project Manager $97,850 1306 $13,172

Sybil Masse Program Manager $88,000 9% $8,123

Nicole Chute Digital Strategists - $70,040 9%, $6,465

Julianne Battista "Creative Designer $63,507 10p% $6,106
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JU_LO'?’QQ PH 4:15 RCVD
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
. DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALJH SER VICES.
19 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-B00-852-3345 Ext. 4501 ‘

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: |-800-735-2964
- wwiww,dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Shibinetre
Commissioner

Palricia M. Tifley
" Director

June 28, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House -
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Serviges, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSi Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/bfa
Community Health Institute (VC#161611-B001), Bow, NH, 1o support the development and
implementation of the Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment to
Pre-Teens and Adolescents contracl, by increasing the price limitdtion by $75.000 from $440,000
to $515,000 with no change to the contracl completion date of -June 30, 2023, effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds. '

The original contract was approved by Governor and Courcil on Febrﬁary 16,2022, item

#32.

_ Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fis
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitatio
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92.920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICE%,
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU O
SABG ADDITIONAL : :

and encumbrances between

EALTH AND HUMAN SVGS
DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,

al Years 2022 and 2023, with-

State } : Increased . -
. .Class ! AW Job Current Revised
Fisca! Class Title (Decreased). .
Year. | Account Number Budget Amount Budget
E Grants for $75,00( $0 $75,000
2022 | 074-500585 | Pub Asst and | 92055502 ;
Rel _
Grants for $75,00( 30 $75,000
2023 | 074-500585 | Pub Asst and | 92055502 i i
' Rel ; :
Subtotal $150,00( $0 $150,000

05-95-90-902010-56080000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT '‘OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY & HEALTH
SERVICES, TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CESSATION °

State Increased’ ’

; Class / " Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased) )
Year Account . 55 Number Budget Amount Budget

The Departmeni of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to Join commuities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health gnd independence.

&

15
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2
Contracts for $145,00p $0 [ $145,000
2032 102500731 | “proc'sve. 80018008 .
Contracts for ' $145,00D $75,000 | $220,000
2023 | 102-500731 Prog Sve .90018008 !
| Subtotal $290,000| - $75,000| $365,000
Total | $440,000 $75,000 | $515,000:

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to support the Mass-Media |[Campaigns to Promote Vaping
Pravention and Treatment to Pre-Teens and Adolescents program by expanding the scope of
services to include training and technical assistance to trealment providers on .tobacco and
nicotine dependence treatment: By providing training and guidance to treatment providers, health
systems can adopt policies and practices that integrate tobaccp and é-cigarette dependence
treatment into routine care. These additions will make it easier for healthcare teams to deliver
treatment, which will assist with the health and economic burden jof tobacco and nicotine use on
the healthcare system. - ;

‘ The Contractor will provide training to treatment providgrs in order to understand the
science behind tobacco and nicotine addiction; prowde clear and|accurate informationabout the
consequences of tobacce and e-cigarelle use; specify guidance on treatment plans using
comprehensive evidence-based assessments and treatment strajegies; as well as strategies on:
how to work with populations effected by tobacco- and nicoline-related health issues. This
includes providing practical data on the unclear role or efficacy of e-cigareftes in smoking
cessation, and information on the harmful effects of e-cigaretteg among users. In addition, the
antracgor will be available to provide technical assistance to help trealment providers implement
health systems changes that institutionalize tobacco use screerjing and intervention, including
referrals to the NH tobacco quitline. '

The Depariment will continue to monitor services by tacking the number of people
registered for training, the number of people who completed fraifing, and ensuring that training
evaluations are completed.

‘Should the Gavernor and Council not authorize this request. treatment providers will not
have the most current information about tobacco use and deperjdence; including the feasibility
and health and economic benefits of integrating tobacco dependance treatment into their clinical
workflows. The result of which is the lack of beneficial suppont| for individuals to successfully
overcome tobacco-dependence. ' '

Area served: Statewide

Resp ctfully submitted, .

DpcuSigned Gy:

& WM
Cr i S

Commpissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Ser
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping
Teens and Adolescents contract is by and between the State of New
and Human Services - ("State™ or "Depanment”} and JSI Researg
Community Health Institute {"the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by

vices

Prevention and Treatment to Pre-
r Hampshire, Department of Health
h & Training Inslitute, Inc. d/b/a

he Governor and Executive Council

on February 16, 2022, (item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform cénain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certaip sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragra
Standard Agreement Provisions, Paragraph 1., Subparagraph 1.1., t
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and

17, ‘and Exhibit A, Revisions to
e Contract may be amended upon
Executive Council; and

. WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support

continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutuai ¢
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties herelo agree to amens

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Black 1.8, Price Limitation, to
$515000 T

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer
Robert W. Moore, Director '

Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Subsection 1.1

1.12 The Contractor shall provide at minimum three (3) virtual
: by the Department,.to healthcare professionals who 3
effective tobacco cessation treatment to their patients. T

1.42.1. Trainings are available to a minimum of 30 indi
diverse needs of a variety of target populations

1.12.1.1.  Clinical and support profession
services 10 those diagnosed with 3
1.12.1.2. Healthcare providers serving ind

rovenants and conditions contained -
i as follows:

read:’
for State Agency, to read:

é to read:

or in person trainings, as approved
sre providing and want to provide
ne Contractor shall ensure that:

yiduals and are tailored to mee! the
including, but not limited to:

als providing tobacco lreatment
ubstance misuse disorder(s).

viduals with tobacco dependence

which shall include, but is not linfited to: pediatricians, primary care

physicians, and dentists.

1.12.2. Trainings include the folldwing subjecls, which
$12.21.  Tobacco addiction.
1.12.2.2.  Financial and health consequenc
1.12.2.3.
_based assessments and treatmen
1.12.2.4.

issues.
' 1.12.3. A comprehensive training plan is developed to:

1.12.3.1. Provide evidence-based learnin

opportunities to become a Tobacg

healthcare professionals interestad in becoming NH ba

JS1 Research & Training Inslilute, Inc. A-5-1.2
dfbla Community Health Instiute

RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01 Page 10of 6

nclude but are not limited to:

of tobacco use.

s
Specific guidance on treatment pljns using~comp_fehensive evidence-

| strategies.

How to work with populations effected with tobacco related health

g collaborative and educalional
o Treatment Specialist and identify
bacco

Contractor Initlats

6/28/2022
Date _
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Treatment Specialist trainers.

1.12.3.2. Provide foundational learning ppportunities on evidence-based
tobacco treatment during the scheduled Treatment Community of
Practlice meetings.

1.12.3.3.  Align with the strategic plan of the Governor's Commission on Alcoho!
and other Drugs, including ensuring that trainings are informed by the
Governor's Commission eight (8) {askforces.

1.12.4, Training is based on the Council for Tobacco Treatment Training and is designed
to provide attendees with the knowledge, skills,|and tocls required to meet the core
compelencies of tobacco dependence treatmept. Strategies shall include, but are
not limited to: o
1.12.41.  Motivational interviewing techniqugs.
1.12.4.2. Assessment skills.
1.12.4.3.  Treatment planning.
1.12.4.4 Relapse prevention.
1.12.4.5, Documentation and evaluation,
1.12.4.6. Professional resources.
1.12.4.7. Laws and ethics.

1.12.5. The training structure includes bt is not limited to:

1.125.1.  Didactic lecture. '

1.12.5.2.  Small group aclivities.

1.12.5.3. Case sludies.

1.12.5.4.. Resource sharing and/or networking.

1.12.6. All materials, equipment, and physical space, ag well as, logistical and staff support
for the training and education programs are deljvered under this contract.

1.12.5. The delivery of training activities involves fthe monitoring and collection of
information which includes, but is not limited to
1.12.6.1.  Title of training.

11.12.6.2.  Dates of trainings.
1.12.6.3.  Name of registrant.
1.12.6.4.  Registrant job title.
1.12.65.  Name of agency.
1.12.6.6.  Agency address.
1.12.6.8.  Wait lists.
1.12.6.9.  Continuing education hours received,
1.12.7. All trainers are approved by the Department| and have expertise in the areas
: necessary to meet the strategies and target gopulations outlined in Subsections
1.12.1. and 1.12.4.
112.8. Al training needs are met and provide for| continuous quality improvement,
: [+ L}
JS! Research & Training Inslitute, Inc. A-§-1.2 Conlracior Initials L__
dfv/a Communlity Health Institute 6/28/2022
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01 Page 2 of 6 Date
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1.12.8.

1.12.12.

1.12.13.
1:12.14.
1.12.15.

1.12.16.

evaluating each for:

1.12.8.1.  Training content

1.12.8.2.  Instructor knowledge and ability
1.12.8.3.  Transfer of knowledge, skills, and abilities to training participants

1.12.8.4.  Whether the training met the slatéil:i goals and objectives

An eighty-five percent (85%) or better rating of trainee satisfaction is achieved,
through training evaluations, based on aggregale evaluation data.

Training satisfaction surveys are disseminated to each participaht upon training
completion, . .

Evaluation survey results are shared wilh the presenter within 14 days of the
training completion date.

Participants are provided approved contlnumg ducation credits of both in-person
and electronic learning opportunities.

Each continuing education (CE) requirement i§ adhered to, providing participants
with céntificates that accurately reflect the hour&i attended.

All CE provided is approved by the State and n tlonal accredited entmes in¢cluding

bul not limited to:

1.12.17.

'1.12.1?.1. Communicating avaitable trainin

1 .12. 16.1  Council for Tobacco Treatment Tr ining Programs.
1.12.16.2. New Hampshire Prevention Cer’(iﬁ ation Board.
1.12.16.3. - NH Board of Llcensmg for A1coholpnd Other Drug Use Professmnals

Trainings are promoted to increase provider av{areness and attendance at evants.
Promollonal stralegies include but are not I:rmtf to:

opporiunities with ~professional
networks and State boards. ‘

1.12.17.2. Collaborating with the Departmentto promote trainin_cjs to state funded
contractors.

1.12.17.3. Providing targeted marketing with specific professnonal associations
and organizations based on training topic.

1.12.17.4. Posting training opportunities to the New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug
Abuse Counselors AssoGiation (LJHADACA) listing of professional
development activities.

1.12.17.5. ~ Posting available training opportunities {o NHADACA's monthly newsletter,
. bi-monthly Best Practice newsletter and . other publications, and collaborating

Department approved organization websites.1.12.19. . Coffee, tea, and water

. * are provided for in-person training events at no|cost to participants.
4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Subsection 1.13 to read:

' 1.13. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to hglp treatment providers implement
health systems changes that inslitutionalize tobacco| use screening and intervention,

including referrals to the NH tobacco quitline.
5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:

C
JSI Research & Training tnstitule, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

dfbfa Community Health Institute : 6/28/2022
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1.1.  25% Federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatmnet Block
Grant COVID-19 Supplemenal Award, as awargled on March 15, 2021, by the U.S. .
Department of Health and Human Services, $ubstance Abuse & Mental Health
Services Administration, CFDA #93.387; FAIN ¥NYS8DPQ06786; and

1.2. . 75% General funds.
.6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Seclion 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for pctual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in.accordarice with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-5, Budget Amendment #1.

7. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hgreto and incorporated by reference '
herein.

[__os
JSi Research & Tralning Institute, Inc. A-8-1.2 Contractor Initials i
d/bfa Community Heallh Institule ) 6/28/2022

RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01 Page 4016 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Conlract not modified by this Amendgnent remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council apprgval.

"IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of-the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
D.epanrnent of Health and Human Services

) Docusignes by:
6/30/2022 : El"* Wk
— QrIssnaFRIeCT
Date Name:Iain watt

Title: peputy Director t OPHS

JS!| Research & Training|Institute, inc. d/bfa Community
Heatlth Institute

: DocuSigned by;
6/28/2022 | kot Koburt
Date . FGEET T

Name: "¢
Tille: pirector

. JSI Research & Training Inslitute, Inc. A-S-1.2
. dfbla Community Health Institule
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01 Page 50f 6
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, subslance, and

execution.

6/30/2022
Date

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSignsd by:
[ ﬂlj"\. H .o
Name: Fobyn wearine

Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregbing'Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeling on:

Date

JSI Research & Training Instilute, Inc.
dibfa Community Health Inslitute
RFP-2022-OPHS-13-MASSM-01-A01

OFFICE OF THE SECR

(date of meeting)

ETARY OF STATE

.Name: -
Title:

A-5-1.2°

" . Page6ofl6
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STATE OF NEW HAM
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissloner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-334

Fax: 603-2714827 TDD Access:

Patricia M. Tlley www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director |

Janug

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Servi
Services, to enter into a contract with-JS| Research & Training
" Health Institute (VC #161611-B001), Bow, New Hampshire, in the
and implement vaping prevention and treatment mass media
adolesceénts, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional
and Council approval through June 30, 2023. 34% Federal Funds.

PSHIRE
HUMAN SERVICES
TH SERVICES

19 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

b Ext. 4501
1-800-735-2964

ry 28,2022

ces, Division of Public Health
nstitute, Inc., dfb/a Community
amount of $440,000 to develop
campaigns.to pre-Teens and
years, effective-upon Governor
66% General Funds.,

Funds are available in the following accounts for Slate Fi

cal Years 2022 and 2023, with -

the authority to adjust’ budget line items within the price limitatign and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justlf' d.

005-95-90-902010-56080000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND -
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH

SERVICES, TOB'A'CCO PREVENTION AND CESSATION (100%

ENERAL FUNDS) - -

State _

Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Jo+ Number | Total Amount

Year

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9*)018008 $145,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 95018008 ' $145,900
Subtota $290,000

05-95 92.920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,

HEALTH AND HUMAN SvCS

' DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, SABG

ADDITIONAL (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State . )
Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount |
_. Year. _ ; , i
2022 .074.500585 Community Grants 92055502 . $75,000
2023 074-500585 Community Grants 92055502 $75,000
Subtotal $150,000
Total $440,000

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to jo

in providing opportunitics for citizens to ochieve healily

n communities and fumilies
and independence.

3122 it 1:00 RCUD 59- Q\W
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Vendor to develgp, promote, and disseminate
Department-approved marketing materials as part of statewide marketing, media, and
communication campaigns to reduce electronic C|garette initiatiop and use among middle and
high school-aged youth.

Adolescent high school-aged youth are more likely to uge e-cigarettes than any other
tobacco product. E-cigarette usage rates have risen sharply in recent years. Research from the
Centers for Disease Control (CDC) indicates that mass-reach health communications on
comprehensive tobacco prevention and cessation pragrams redyce tobacco use among youth
and adults, increase quut at1empls increase use of cessation se ices. and prevent youth from ,

- initiation. '

The Vendor will Suppon the Department in. mcreasmg engagement through primary and
secondary lobacco prevention mass media marketing, alignment of messaging for vaping
prevention and treatment in NH adolescent networks, and sugport for other communicalion
activities- with relevant stakeholders. Mass media campaigns wil| incorporate behavior change
theories, marketing and health communication principles, curren| best practices in accordance
.with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and paid, earned digilal, and social media
strategies. -

" The Vendor will develop vaping prevenlion campaign strajegies by conducting formative
research, focus groups, and message testing, reviewing natjonal media campaigns, and.
identifying the best approaches lo reach target audiences. The Yendor will engage community
partners and collaborate with vaping prevention networks and community leaders statewide.

The Depariment will monitor services lo ensure:

« The number of 'My Life, My Quit' vaping prevgnlion campaign users
increases by a minimum of 500 participants (Baseljne: 0 partncnpants)

s E-cigarette use among. middie and high school-
decrease by a minimum of five percent (5%) co
~ 2019 Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS)baselin

» E-cigarette initiation among middle and high schoo
decrease by a minimum of five percent (5%} co
2019 YRBS baseline of 49.8%.

The Depariment selected the Contractor through a co
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Depanmenl website from August 20, 2021,
through September 23, 2021. The Department received eight (8) fesponses. Four (4) responses
were reviewed and scored by a téam of qualified individuals and four {4) were disqualified. The
Scoring Sheet is altached

ged youth indicates a
pared to the reported
of 34%.

aged youth indicates a
pared to the reported

efitive bid process using a

nt Provisions, of the altached
up to two (2) additional years,
. agreement of the parties, and

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agree
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement fi
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundm
Governor and Council approval, .

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this requegl, the Department would have
no proaclive resources to support anti-vaping media and mass cgmmunications and would have
- to rely on no-cost health communications only. This may lead| to an increase in youth and
adolescent use of tobacco products, a decrease in tobacco quit ttempts, limited availability of
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T."Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
Page 30f3

cessation services, and limited resources for the prevention of yguth initiation of e-cigarette and

tobacco use.
Area served: Statgwide

Source of Federal Funds: CFDA #93.387, FAIN NU58DFI006786.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer ava

will not be requested to support this program.

lable, additional General Funds

"Respectfully submitted,

@wl& &. Lm.Jn,

J4QADITEODED4SS..

Lori
Com

. Shibinette
issioner
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Now Hampsh!ro Dapastment of Hoalth and Human Services
Divislon of FInance and Procuroment
Buroau of Contracts and Procurement
Scorlna Sheat

Project ID 8 RFP-2022-DPHS-11.MASSM

Project Title Mass Medls Campaigns to P«xnou Pre-Toen and Adotescent Veping Prevention and Trestment

Maximum
i Polnts : Milernhum SageenVision [Tha ODH WMUR-
] Avsliabls [AVC medla Fuseideas REL Agancy niarket* ' |Madin’ Squad’ HEARST
P Ko
Q1 &0 £ X0 48 40 0 0 0 o
S_)__Medh Morkeing STEeges
[CF) 80 45 49 49 40 0 0 . O 0
Cempaion Evatsation (O3} 40 25 40 35 20 0 0 o 0
Negotiating Practices (O4) Fr) as 40 a5 40 0 0 0. 0
Successtul Cempalpn .
Outeomes {O5) 10 20 15 30 15 0 -0 0 0
o8 . 30 15 15 30 15 0 [ 0 0
Yereth Infloencers or
L Ambessadors (G7) 30 28 25 30 15 0 [+ 0 0
Performencs Messurs Metrics
(on 30 20 20 20 0 0 0 0 0
Subtotal - Technical] 300 231 228 287 183 0 0 0 0
Budgets (Appendix C} end ;
Budgat Narmathves 70 20 10 70 20 0 0 [} 0
Progresn Stafl Lists (Appendbx
D) ) 30 0 9 % 9 o 0 0 [
Subtotal - Coxt| 100 20 19 100 2 o [ ) [
TOTAL POINTS| 400 251 . 244 387 214 ‘o [ 0 0
"Disquaiifiad
" Reviewer Nams Tids -
¥ Kira Hagaman Businass Administrator Il
2 Lisa Cocciots . Aaministrator 1
3 Jessica Morion Progrem Spectats IV
4 Donne Asbury Administrator i
S Armands Spreeman Program Spadu!st v
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Subject: Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

(RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, canfidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to gigning the contract.

‘ AGREEMENT
The State of New-Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutusitly agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISTONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,

1.1 Siatc Agency Name

New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

1.2 Statc Agency Address

129 Pleasant Stree
Concord, NH 03391-3857

1.3 Controctor Name .

JS1 Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute

1.4 Contraclor Adgress -

501 South Streqt, 2nd FL.
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number | : . '
_ ' 05-95-90-902010-5608
(603) 573-3300- 05-95-92-920510-1981

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2023 : $440,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency|Telephone Number -

{603)271-9631

-1.11 - Contractor Signature

Date:1/31/2022

1.12 Namc and Tjtle of Contraclor Signatory
“Susan Grantham :

Vice President, Health Services Division

Date: 2/1/2022

.14 Name and Thile of State Agency Signatory
ann H. Landry ’

Associate fommissioner

B'y:

y the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if qpplicabie)

Director, On:

OocuSigned by:

By: ?\ujm Qunrino

1.16 Approval by the Attorncy General (Foﬁ-n, Substance and Exccution} (if applicable)

On: 2/3/2022

G&C Tiem number:

1.17 Approvalby the Governor and Exceutive Counci) (if applicable)

G&C Mecting Daje:

08
Page 1 of 4 _ i 5G
Contractor Initials

FORM NUMBER P-37 {version 12/11/2019) -

Date 1/31/2022
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), cngages contrnctor  identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perfarm, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Scrvices™).

1. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding -any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject 10 the approval of the Governor and
Exccutive Cquncil of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the datc the Governor and Excculive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in bleck 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which casc the Agreement
shall become effective on the dale the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Datc™).

3.2 If the Contraclor commences the Services prior 1o the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
. the Effecuve Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrecinent does not becoine
effective, .the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including withoul limitation, any obligation to pay " the
Contractor for' any costs incurred or Services performed.

Contractor must complete ali Scrvnccs by the Completion Date -

specificd in block 1. 7

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nolwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 10 the
contrary, all obligations of the Staie hercunder, including,
without limitation,.the continuance of payments hereunder, are
‘comingent-upon the availability and continucd appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or cxecutive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
approprintion. or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Scrvices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
" event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
termiiate the Services under this Agreement immediztely upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tcrmination,
The State shalt not be required 10 transfer funds from any other
account or source 1o the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc rcduccd or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICEIPRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and 1erms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference. .

5.2 The payment by the Staic of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatcver nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

Page 2 of 4

compensation to
have no tiability
5.3 The State rg
otherwise payabl
liquidated amou
through RSA 80;

the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
o the Contractor other than the contract price.
serves the right to offset from any amounts -
e 1o the Contractor under this Agreement those
s required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
-¢ or any Sther provision of law.

5.4 ‘Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrcement 10 the
contrary, and nolwithstanding uncxpected circumstances, in no
event shall the tofal of all payments authorized, or actually made ~

" property laws.

hereunder, excee

6. COMPLIAN
AND REGULA

the Pricc Lim_ilmion sct forth in block 1.8.

EBY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
IONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connecti

Cantractor shall
regulntions, .and
authoritics whic
Contractor, incl
employmeni opp
funded in any pa
shall comply wil
and statutes, and

State or the Unitg

The Contractor s

6.2 During the g
discriminate aga
because of race, ¢

n wnh the performance of the Scrvices, the |
comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
orders of federal, siate, county or municipal
. imposc any, obligation or duty upon the
ing, but not limiled 1o, civil rights and cqual
rtunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
by.monics of the United States, the Contraclor
i all federa) excoutive orders, rules, regulations

with any rules, regulations and guidelings as the’
td States issue to implement these regulations.
hall elso comply with all applicable intclicctual

rm of this Agreement, the Comtractor shall not
nst employees or applicanis for employment

oricnlation, ar n
prevent such di

olor, rcligion creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
ional origin and will take affirmative action 10
ritmination. -

6.3. The Contragtor agrees to permit the Slatc or United States
access 10 any of (e Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of astertaining compliance with all rules, regulations

~ provision shall s

and orders, and|ithe covenants, terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contraci
necessary to per
all personnel ¢
perform the Sc
otherwisc author

r shall at its own cxpense provide all personnel

rm the Services. The Contractor warrants that
gaged in the Services shall be qualificd 10
rvices, and shall be properly licensed and
zcd to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otheriwise authorized in writing, during the term of

this Agreement,
Completion Dald
shall not permit
corporation with
perform the Serv
or official, who
administration ¢

7.3 The Contraci

and for o period of six (6) monhs after the
in block 1.7, the Contractor shall nol hire, and
any subcontractor or other person, firm or
whom it is engaged in a combined cffort (o
£es to hire, any person who is a2 State employce
is materially involved in the procurement,
r performance of this Agreement.  This
rvive termination of this Agreement.

ing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her

successor, shall Be the State's represemative. In the cvent of any

dispute concerni
Contracting OfTi4

ng the intcrpretation of this Agreement, the
ter's decision shall be final for the Statc.

0%
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shal} constitute an event of default hereunder ( "Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 faiture to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
.8.1.3 failurc to peeform any olher covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. '

8.2 Upon the occurence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any onc, Or more, or all, of the following actions:-

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specnfymg the Eventof

Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
8 greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the

date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminatc this Agrcemcnl cilcétive 1wo (2) days aﬂcr givinyg the
Contractor notice of termination;

. 8.2.2 give the Contracior a wrillen notice spccnl'ylng the Event of
Default and suspending all payments 1o be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
_ which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
detcrmines that the Contractor has curcd the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

. 8.2.3 pive the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and sct off against any other obligations the State moy
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers b)' reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

B.2.4 give the Contracior 8 written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfoult, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agrecment and pursue any of its rcl‘ncdics at law or in cquity, or
both,

8.3. No failure by the Statc to cnforcc any provisions hercof afier

any Event of Default shall be deemed o waiver of ils rights with- -

regard 1o that Event of Defaul, or any subscquent Event of
Default. No express faiture to enforce any Eveat of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and
all of the provisions hercof upon ony further or other Event of
Defdult on the part of the Contractor. "

9. TERMINATION. .
9.]1 Nohwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slalc may, at its solc
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contracior that
the State is exercising is option 1o ierminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any rcason other than the .complction of the Services, the
Contractor shall; at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fiftcen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Repont™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, lo
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
contcny, and number of copics of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the auached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, a! the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the Siate a Trensition Plan for services under the

Agreement,

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATI '
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “dala” shall mean all *
information and things dévelaped or obtained during the
performance of, gr acquired or developed by reasen of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulac, sfirveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictofial rcproducnons drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, dompuler programs, compuler printouls, notes,
letters, memorangla, papers, and documents, all whcthcr

finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data-and any property which has been rCCCIVCd from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agrecment, shal! be ihe property of the Staie, and
shall be returned fto the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreemet for any reason.

10.3 Confidentis|ity of data shall be govemed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or gther existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State. '

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthc
performance of this Agreement the Coatractor is in all Tespects
an independent |contractor, and is neither an agent nat an
employee of the| State.  Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employtes, agents or members shall have authority to,
bind the Statc or peccive any benefits, workers” compensalion or.
other emoluments provided by the Statc (o'its cmployces.

12, ASSIGNM NT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contraftor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any .
interest in this Agreement withowt the prior writien notice, which
shail be provided to the State at least fificen (15) days prior to
the assignment, gnd a writien consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragrdph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment.  “Change of Conlrol” means (a) merger,

" consolidation, off 2 transaction or series of related tmnsaclions in

which a third pprty, stogether with its afiliates, becomes the
direct or indirec) owner of [ifly perceni (50%) or morc -of the
voting sharcs of similar cquity interests, or combincd voting
power of the Cofractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the asscts of the Contractor.

12.2 Nonc of phe Services shall be subcontracted by the

" Contractor withdul prior written notice ond consent of the State.

The State is entifled to copies of all subcentracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract jor an assignment agreement to which-itis not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless (he State, ils
officers and cmployecs, from and-ogainst any and all claims,
liabilitics and cobts for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asseried agains
the State, its offecers or employees, which arise out of (or which -

may bc claimed to arise oul of) the acls or omissienon{ the
Page 3 of 4 - ‘ G
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to \he
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph (3. Nowwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
containcd shalt be deemed to constitute o waiver of the sovercign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the

State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the .

termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole cxpense, obtain and
" continuousty maintain in force, and sholl require any
subcontracior or assignce to ¢bigin and maintain in force, the

following insurancce:
14.1.1 commercial general lmbllaty insurance against all ckaims

of bodily injury, déath or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2, 000,000 aggregate .

or excess; and -

14.1.2 special cruse of loss coveraye _I'orm covering oll propeny
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the wholc replacement valuc.of the property.

14.2 The policics described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on palicy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issucd by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshirc,

14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer

identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecment.
Contracior shall also fumish 1o the Contracting Officer identificd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the cxpiration datc of cach
insurance palicy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
rencwals thereof shall be attached and are mcorporatcd herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ceetifies
and warvants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (*‘Workers’
Compensation ).

15.2 To 1he extent the Contractor is subject to the requircments
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
requirc any subcontractor or assignee to securc and maintain,
payment of Workers® Compensation in connection with
activitics which the person proposes (o undertake pursuant 10 this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, prool of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any -applicable rencwal(s) thercof, which shall be
attachced and arc incorporated hercin by reference. The Siate
shall not be responsible for payment of any- Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontraclor or employce of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto 10 the other party .
shall be decmed o have been duly delivered or given at the time

of mailing by ccrtificd mail, postage prepaid, in a United States

Post Office nddrgssed 1o the parties at the nddresses given in,
blocks. .2 and 1.4, herein, '

17. AMENDMENT. This Agrcement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
partics hereto apd only aficr approval of such amecndment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Siate of New |Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumgtances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18.- CHOLICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, intgrpreted and: construed in accordanée with the
laws of the Statg of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bengfit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The \'vording uscd in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the paftics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applicd against or in favor of any party.

Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in Ngw Hampshire Superior Court which shall have,

_exclusive jurisdidlion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the cvent of o conflict
between the termjs of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modificd in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The partics hercio do not intend 1o’
benéfit any thirgl partics and this Agrecment shall not be
construcd to conficr any such benefit. .

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughoit the Agreemend are
for reference purposcs only, and the words comtained thercin
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretalion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL| PROVISIONS. Additional or modilying
provisions sct forgh in the aftached E)\HIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by rcfcrcn c.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by o court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to eny sfatc or federal Jaw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24, ENTIRE AGCREEMENT. This Agrecment, which may be
exccuted in a number of counterparts, cach of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the cntire agreement and
understanding beiween ihe pantics, and supersedes all prior
agrcements and upderstandings with respect to the subject matter

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire . hereof.
Workers' Compensation laws in  conncction with  the
“performance of the Services urider this Agreement. :
oS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servi¢

es

Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment

to Pre-Teens and Adolescents
EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Prc

wisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Servu:es is'amended by adding

subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for |
from the Completion Dale, contingent u

pto two (2) additional years
gon satisfactory delivery of

services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the

Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding

subpa'rag'raph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same cpntractual conditions as the
- Contractor and. the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor

compliance with those conditions. The C
ng the work to be performed

agreements with all subcontractors, specify

ntractor shall have written

and how corrective action shall be manpged if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Conlractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoirnig basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with '
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor gerformance. '

, D3
| sG
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01 JS| Ressearch & Tralning Institule, Inc. Contraclor tnilials
A10 Page 1 of 1 Date 1/31/2022




DocuSign Envelope ID: B323009D-78CE-44B0-9308-256784380FF9

DocuSign Envelope 10: BA6T2F7D-4708-4782-9672-50886836C978

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Serv'ces ‘
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vapung Prevention and Treatment

to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBIT B

1. Statement of Work

1.1.

mass. media campaigns intended to decrease use and provide support to
" Middle and High School Aged Youth, statewide. | .

1.2. For the purposes of:this Agreement, social marketing is defined as the
application of commercial marketing technologigs for. the analysis, planning,
execution, and evaluation of programs deséned to influence voluntary

* behavior of Middle and High School Aged Youth in order lo |mprove their
personal welfare and that of society. ‘ '

1.3. The Contractor shall develop, promote and disséminale markehng materials,
‘-upon a‘pproval by the Department, as part of a statewide marketing, media and
communications campaign to reduce electronig cigarette initiation and use

_ among Middle and High School Aged Youth. -

1.4. The selected Vendor will assist the Department with:

1.4.1. Increasing engagement through primary and secondary tobacco.
prevention mass media marketing; .

1.4.2. Aligning vaping prevention and treatment with NH adolescent
networks and,; :

1.4.3.  Supporting communications with stakeholders.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure campaigns incorporate:
- 1.51. Behavior change theories;

1.5.2.  Marketing principles,

1.5.3.  Health communication principles; and

154. Current best practices in accordance wrth the Centers for Disease
Control; and

1.55. Paid, earned digital and social media strategies focused on primary
and secondary tobacco prevention.

1.6. Campalan Deve!opment Strategles '

1.6.1.  The Contractor shall develop the campangn utilizing a research-driven
~ and audience-centered approach, grqunded on behavior change
theories. The Contractor shall:
1.6.1.1.  Conduct research and strategy, ,
1.6.1.2. Conduct inventory of existin1 marketing materials, and
. 1.6.1.3: Identify existing related |national social marketirg
campaigns or campaigns with related content. E“’
RFP-ZOZZ-DPHS-H-MASSM—O‘: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Contraclor nltials SG :
B-1.0 Page 10f 14 Date 1/31/2022
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The Contractor shall develop and implement vaping prevention and treatment
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servi
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment
to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBIT B

es

RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01

8-1.0

16.2.

1.6.3.

1.6.4.

1.6.5.

1.6.6.

1.6.7.

1.6.3.1.  Non-profit rates;
1.6.3.2.
" n and
1.6.3.3. Taggables (sponsorship).

The Contractor shall conduct formative Lesearch to determine:

1.6.2.1.
16.2.2.
1.6.2.3.

NH youth knowledge of e-cig
Attitudes, and

rettes and/or vaping;

- Behaviors around risk, risk re duction, and prevention.

The Contractor shall develop a prelimingry market research plan prior

to commencing market research and
decisions to achieve:

The Contractor shall, through connectio

determining final budgetary

Bonus welght based on the cwerall investment {discount};

ns with partner organizations

and a series of participatory design workishops, conduct focus groups

and workshops with NH youth to: y
1.64.1.

1.6.4.2. Create additional core cam

as needed.

_Understand current messagjarecepti\}ity; and

ign messages and-imagery

The Contractor shall ensure focus groups and workshops:

Take place in person or virtyally (using Zoom or another

Iders to identify the health

problem in their own words ir order to define what nicotine
risk reduction and preventior| looks like to them; and

16.5.1.

video conferencing platform)
16.5.2. Empower youth and stakeh
1.6.5.3.

inform the development
adaptatlon '

The Contractor shall ulilize the youth-st
foundation for creating campalgn CONCe
needed. :

The Contractor shall develop a strategi¢

that focuses on:
1.6.7.1.
16.7.2.

Vaping prevention and treatn

Communication preferences
Aged Youth.

JS1 Research & Training Institute, Inc.’
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Are utilized to learn health tommunication strategies to

f campaign trajectory and

akeholder designs as a solid
tpts and adapt messages as

campaign planning process

nent health information; and
of Middle and High School
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment

to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBIT B

1.6.8. - The Contractor shall utilize an audience-centered a'pproach to
develop each vaping prevention and treatment campaign W|th special
consideration given to:
1.6.8.1.  Priority audiences' health Iite a_cy level,
1.6.8.2. Language preferencés; and
1.6.8.3. Compliance with the Americin Disabilities Act.

1.6.9. The Contractor shall identify existing effective media campaigns from
other communities or reputable sources that may be adapted for the
Middle and High School Aged Youth pdpulatlon as appropriate. The
contractor shall:

16.9.1. Collect and summarize data and Fndlngs from other-
. similar campaigns; and

1.6.9.2. Continue formative research by conducting additional
focus  groups andfor key in orrnant interviews' (Kil} with

. stakeholders, commumty orgpnlzatlons and.youth leaders.

1.6.10. The Contractor shall conduct additional focus groups and/or KlI to:

1.6.10.1. Determine modifications required on existing materials
and messages based - on| their exustlng use in the
commumty,
1.6.10.2. Test current cessation and grevention messages as well
as any other campaign concepts that rise to the top
through the. formative: researfh process; and
. 1.6.10.3. Identify community organizafioris in'collaboration with the
"~ Department to recruit individials to review pre-developed
messages and materials.

1.6.11. The Contractor shall develop a summary of the message testing.
results and provide campaign recommendations to the Department
and stakeholders prior 1o proceedané with campaign concepts.
Recommendations must include:
1.6.11.1. Audience personas to guide. any new creative

development; ' : .
1.6.11.2. Key messaging and supportive messaging segmented by
audience;
1.6.11.3. Creative development concqpts segmented by audlence
to enhance current campaigns;
. i bs
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01 JSI Research & Tralning institute, Inc, Contractor Initials :
B-1.0 : Page 3of 14 . Date 1/31/2022




DocuSign Envelope ID: B3230090-76CE-44B0-0308-2567B4383FF9

DocuSign Envelope \D: B46?2F7‘D-4798-4782—9672-50385835097B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servites
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Preventuon and Treatment

to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBIT B

1.7

1.6.12. The Contractor shall develop addition

1.6.11.4. A paid and organic cémpaign approach, including: -

1.6.11.4.1. Digital media. (including Google Ads and
Snapchat/geotdrgeting),

1.6.11.4.2. Social media;
-1.6.11.4.3. Streaming audip; and

1.6.:! 1.4.4. Direct marketing approaches.

16.11.4.5. Out-of-home and evem'marketing; and

1.6.11.4.6. Key performange indicators and approach to
initial campaigh measurement to ensure
.effective media|spend.

| key campaign messaging
segmented by audience as needed, 1o nsure: '

1.6.12.1. Campaign concepts: align with health behavior change’

best practices;

1 1.6.12.2. Increased message efficacy;|and '

1.6.12.3. Avoidance of stigmatizing |or traumatizing .content by
. incorporating best practices |in the development of every
aspect of each campaign, ingluding:

16.12.3.1. CDC's Best Plactices User Guide: Health
: Commumcatuo S;

1.6.12.3.2. Best Practices| User Guide: Health Eqmty
and

1.6.12.3.3. Best Practices User Guide: Partnerships in
planning and implementing.

Community Engagement :
1.7.1.

1.7.2.

The Contraclor’ shall collaborate wi

‘ prevention partners and
community leaders across the State to: gt

1.7:1.1.  Extend the reach of campaign messaging; and
1.7.1.2. - Sustain vaping prevention a d treatment efforts.

The Contractor shall collaborate with The Partnership @drugfreeNH
(The Partnership), which is the public-private collaboration between
the Department's Bureau of Drug anf Alcohol Services, the NH
Governor's Commission on Alcohol |[and Other Drugs, the NH
Charitable Foundation, and the NH Center for Excellence 10 End
Addiction, operated and managed by the Contractor.

e ) s
G
RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01 JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc. Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Serviges
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment
to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBITB

1.7.3.

1.7.4.

The Contractor shall collaborate with the Dover Youth-to-Youth to°
engage Media Power Youth (MPY) to identify brand ambassadors for

the campaigns as well as the ‘Save Y
Quit' campaigns.

The Coptractor shall:

1.7.4.1.

1.7.4.2.

1.7.43.

1.7.4.4,

1.7.4.5.

1.7.4.6.

RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01

B-1.0

Plan. and implement- consi
strategies by mapping and int

Utilize available communicat
not limited to:

1.7.4.21.  The Partnershi
1,7.4.2.2.  Social media ¢
17.423. Listserv;
1.74.24. Online events ¢
17425  The Contractor

Power of Preve
Develop and distribute age-

r Breath’ and 'My Life, My

tent statewide messaging -
grating available resources;

on resources including, but

's website; |
annels;

lendar; and .

new podcast series - “The
tion.”

ppropriate information and

campaign resources in collabpration.with:

1.7.4.3.1.  Schools;
1.7.4.3.2.  After-school pr
1.7.43.3. NH Departme

Socialand Em

Engage partners, schools
prevention efforts to -un
effectiveness of the current ¢

Include media placements ai
and community organization
resources;

Promote the eLearning

opportunities for:

1.7.4.6.1.  Pediatric vapin
treatment; and

1746.2. NH SBIRT ¢

pediatric inten
substance use.

JSI Research & Training Instilule, Inc.
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grams,; and

t of Education, Office of
tiona! Wellness.

nd pediatric providers in
derstand usefulness and
ampaign tools through Kils;

med at healthcare providers
5 to promote the campaign
video and web-based

b cessation and referral to

efforts  conducted  around
entions for screening for
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mass-Media Campaigns to Promote Vaping Prevention and Treatment
to Pre-Teens and Adolescents

EXHIBIT B

1.8. Campalgn Implementatidn

1.8.1.

1.8.2.

1.8.3.

1.8.4.

1.8.5.

1.8.6.

The Contactor shall implement the campaigns upon Department
approval of each campaign brand palette. -

The Contractor shall execute a “promoted launch” of each campaign
no later than September, 2022 that will include releasing materials
including, but not limited to, updated we_bsite content.

The Contractor shall ensure final Campéign materials are acceptable
to the intended audiences during any materials testing. Campaign
materials include: : '

1.8.3.1. Messages:

1.8.3.2. Photography; and

1.8.3.3. Graphics.

The Contractor shall implement a layered messaging te'chhiql]e,

‘which may overlap, resulting in multiple message campaigns:

reaching the same demographic, peer and/or age groups, including:
4.8.4.1. Youth ages 13-15/middle schoo;

18.4.2. Youth.ages 16-18/high school;

184.3. Youth in identified peer crowds;

1.8.4.4. Youth who experience depression;' :

1.84.5. Youth who have experienced substance use in the home
and/or are experiencing poor mental health in the past
thirty (30) days; -

1.84.6. Latinx Youth; and

1.8.4.7. Youth who have other known risk factors.

The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and the
Departmem's partners to.

1.8.5.1. Identify media outtets and pitches;
1.85.2. Track media coverage; and
1.853. Create media kits adaptable for different markets.

The Contractor shall design and implement special events that align
with national awareness months including, but not limited to: -

1.8.6.1. World No Tobacco Day;
1.8.6.2. Take Back Tobacco Day; and

D3
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1.8.7.

1.88.°

1.8.9.

1.8.10.

1.8.11.

- 1.86.3. SAMHSA's national prevention week, in May.
' The Contractor shall collaborate with a local muralist to create murals

in NH counties with higher youth vape usage rates and/or locations
where there is a potential high impact to engage youth and the media.

The Contractor shall in partnership with thé local- Muralist, The
Partnership @drugfreeNH and the youth-serving partners as
specified in 1.8.10, ldentlfy youth and young adult prevention
advocates to support the development. of the murals to ensure murals
reflect the attitudes, beliefs and experiences of Middle and High
School Aged Youth across the State.

The Contractor shall partner with its contacts at Media Power Youth
and the Governor's Youth Advisory Councul on Substance Misuse and
Preventuon to gain:

©1.89.1. Youth expertise;

1.8.9.2. Awareness; and
1.8.9.3.  Buy-in for the mural content and creation.

The Contractor shall collaborate with youth in each region of the State
to further foster community engagement and positive attitudes toward
the murals and in turn the resources of QuitNow-NH and the NH
Tobacco Prevenhon and Cessation Program. The Contractor shall:

1.8.10.1. Create specific hashtags for each mural; and

1.8.10.2. Encourage individuals to take photos with the murals and.
share the photos and hashtags with their online
communities.

1.8.10.3. Allow prevention organizations to download and print’ high-
resolution versions of the murals to showcase and display
in their organizations to drive visitors to the campalgn
website.

The Contractor shali:

1.8.11.1. Collaborate with nahonal and local media pariners to
negotiate the best and lowest non-profit rates as well as
matches and in-kind media placement.to ensure the most
value. Placements include:

1.8.41.1.1. Radio;

1.8.11.1.2. 'Native, defined as online pubiication material
that resembles the publication's editorial
content but is paid for by an advertiser and

- . D,S'
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1.8.11.2.

1.8.11.3.

intended to promote the advertiser's product;
“and '

1.8.11.1.3. Streaming;

Collaborate with representatives of Google and TikTok fo
ensure ads are optimized continuously. .

Utilize its long-standing relationships across NH media
markets including, but not limited to:

" 1.8.11.3.1. Cable Television.

1.8.11.3.2. Local Broadcasters.

1.8.11.3.3. Radio.

1.8.12. The Contractor shall implement campai'gns"utilizing:

1.8.12.1.
1.8.12.2.
1.8.12.3.

Advertising including native, display and social/digital;
Print;-and
Direct mail.

1.8.13. The Contractor shall receive'qdotes. insertion orders and proof of
_ placement from advertising and media vendors and develop a grid of:

1.8.13.1.
'1.8.13.2.
1.8.13.3.
18.13.4.

1.8.13.5.

Channels;

Flights;

Costs;

Impressions; and

Reach for each campaign.

1.8.14. The Contractor shall:

1.8.14.1.

1.8.14.2.

Select behavior change theory to drive the campaigns;
and

Apply behavior change strategies that includes a
combination of platforms, including:

1.8.14.21. Digital,
1.8.14.2.2. Social; and
1.8.14.2.3. Traditional media.

1.8.15. The Contractor shall utilize a blend of digital and social media to
' increase campaign engagement among Middle and High School
Aged Youth with high-use and easy-access to digital platforms.

RFP-2022-DPHS-13-MASSM-01
B-1.0
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1.8.16.

1.817.

1.8.18.

1.8.19.

1.8.20.

The Contractor shall utilize and ‘enhance the web presence for the
‘Save Your Breath’ and ‘My Life My Quite’ campaigns to ensure the
Web sites are supported and maintained throughout the term of the
Agreement.

The Contractor shall conduct focus groups wuth Spamsh speaking
youth with a Spanish-speaking facilitator to gain knowledge for the
purpose of tailoring messaging and content to this population.

The Contractor shall place an emphasis on d:gltél media that allows

for sophisticated audience engagement and greater effi c1ency with

media spend. The Contractor shall:

1.8.18.1. Receive real-time feedback on digital campaign
performance. o

11.8.18.2. Tailor carhpaign advertisements to - drive more

engagement to the campaign’s calls to actions.

1.8.18.3. Utilize detailed behavioral and audience identification to
fun campaign materials on websites and applica_ticns_
{apps) frequented by the population. .

1.8.18.4. Display static and rich media ads on websites and/or social
media apps while videos run in-stream or pre-roll to serve
ads to Middle and High School Aged Youth to capture their
attention while online.

1.8.18.5. Engage viewers who have shown mterest in the content
. using marketing techniques.

The Contractor shall ensure digital content that maximizes the
engagement capabilities of each platform, including:

1.8.19.1. Aligning digital medla buys with important events or
holidays;

1.8.19.2. Drcpping advertisements in’ specific locations using gco-
targeting and location fencing;

1.8.19.3. Creating geo-targeted content at:

1.8.19.3.1. . State fairs, festivals, and/or concerts in
pricrity locations; and
1.8.19.3.2. At events popular among Middie and High
- School Age Youth

The Contractor shall utilize over the top (OTT) media services, offered
directly to viewers via the Internet, which bypasses cable, broadcast,
and satellite television platforms to:

' os
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1.8.21.

1.8.20.1. Supplement traditionat media to split campaign messages
between linear media systems and OTT services that the
target . population can easily access when they want
allowing the campaign to be hyper-targeted and focused.

1.8.20.2. Use the same type of audience segmentation that social
- media platforms allow to reach specific audiences with the
desired messages as compared to traditional television ad -

buys, which includes audiences by:

1.8.20.2.1. Age,
1.8.20.2.2. Location, and
1.8.20.2.3. Personas.

“The Contractor shall in collaboration with the Department deploy

media placements across a strategic mix of media channels.

1.9. Project Managemént

19.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit Work Plans to the
Department in‘accordance with Section 3. Deliverables and Reporting
Requirements. Work Plan activities must include but are not limited
to:
1.9.1.1. Creative development;.
1.9.1.2.  Producing promotional materials; and
1.9.1.3.  Monitoring media consumption.

1.9.2. ;I'he Contractor shall utilize the Performance Measures in Section 4
or: :
1.9.2.1. Maedia planning,
1.9.2.2. Placement,
19.2.3. Monitoring,
1.9.2.4. . Metrics, and
1.9.2.5. Paid and earned media efforts.

19.3. The Contractor shail develop a schedule of monthly conference calls
and in-person and/or virlual meetings with the Department.

1.9.4. The Contractor shall develop communication and approval processes
that ensures effective collaboration with the Department.

s
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1.10.- Cémgaign Evaluation

1.10.1. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Department Evaluator to
ensure evaluation metrics and- process methods of the short- and-
long-term outcomes are considered in all phases of the campaigns.

1.10.2. The Contractor shall provide campaign data to the Depariment
~ " Evaluator, including, but not limited to:

- 1.10.2.1.

1.10.2.2.

1.10.2.3.

1.10.2.4.

Percentage of the intended audience that can accurately :
recall campaign message,

Extent to which audience members believe that campaign
messages were convincing, made them think about their.
actions, or prompted discussion; .

Increase in visits to cessation websites or calls to qmttlne
or text cessation services;

1.10.2.3.1. Adoption of policy;

1.10.2.3.2. Percentage decline in tobacco use rates;
and

Return on investment calculations mcludmg. but not

limited to: :

1.10.2.4.1. Cost per smoker who quit.
1.10.2.4.2. Cost per quality-adjusted life years saved.

1.11. Ttte Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Departfnent to
‘enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. '

2. Exhibits Incorporated

. 2.1. _ The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS -Information Secunty B

Requirements.

2.2. The Contractor shall comply with Standard Exhlblts D through H, J and K, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. i

3. Deliverables and Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit a Work Plan for Year One (1) of the Agreement
Term for Department approval, in a format approved by the Department and no
greater than three (3) pages in length, within fifteen business (15) days of the
Contract Effective. Date that must include, but is not limited to,

3.1.1. Campaign objectives;
312 Activities and
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3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.1.3. Outcomes.

The Contractor shall submit subsequent annual Work Plans for each State
Fiscal Year of the Agreement Term for- Department approval by July 1 each
Contract Year:

The Contractor shall provide Work Plan Status Reports to the Department on
a quarterly and annual basis, and.more frequently as requested by the

. Department, which must include, but is not limited-to:

3.3.1.  Status of allitems Eequired in the annual Work Plans in accordance
with Paragraph 1.9.1.

3.3.2.  Number and reach of paid and earned media efforts targeting Middle
and High School Aged Youth to prevent and reduce tobacco use.

3.3.3.  Number and reach of paid and earned media efforts targeting Middie
' and High School Aged Youth to raise awareness of quit support
services and promote quitting, and reduce tobacco dependence.

The Contractor shall provide a Final Status Report to the Dépanment, in a
format satisfactory to the Depariment, within thirty business (30) days of the
Agreement End Date that must include:

3.41. A summary of all services provided; and .

3.4.2. Goals and objsctives achieved, including but not limited to the
Performance Measures in Subsection 4, which are subject to change
by the Department.

The Contractor may be required to collect and share other key data and metrics
with the Department upon request in a format as specified by the Department.

4, Performance Measures

4.1.

The Contractor shall meet the followmg Performance Measures:

4.1.1. ‘My Life, My Quut users increase by a minimum of five hundred (500)
' parhapants (Baseline: 0 participants).

41.2. E-cigarette use among Middle and High School Aged Youth indicates
a decrease by a minimum of five percent (5%), which will be reflected
in the Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS). (Baseline: 34% as
reported in The 2019 YRBS.

4.13. E-cigarette initiation among Middle and High School Aged Youth
indicates a decrease by a minimum of five percent (5%). which will be
reflected in the YRBS. (Baseline: 49.8% as reported in the 2019
YRBS). '

- . o3
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4.1.4.

The Department may identify additional performance measures,
which may include but are not limited to, baselines and target
performance indicators.

- 5. Additional Terms

5.1.

5.2.

. 53

Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

- 511

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an .impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

Federal Civil Rights Laws Comphance Culturally and Linguistically Appropnate
Programs and Services .

52.1.

532

.5.3.3.

~ The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) ‘business days of the .

Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be
provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or services to
individuals with limited English proficiency, individuals who are’ ‘deaf
or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and
individuals who have speech challenges.

Credits and Copyright Ownership
53.1.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, “The

-preparation of -this (report, document etc.) was financed under an

Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Deparlmenl of Health and Human
Services.” ;

All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have-
prior approval from the Department before printing, . production,
distribution or use.

The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all ‘
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1.  Brochures.
5.3.3.2. Resource directories.
5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

'5.3.3.4.' Posters.

)
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5.3.3.5. . Reports.

5.34. The Contractor shall not reproduce any hwaterials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1.

6.2.

The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the -Contract, and all ircome
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. Al records must be maintained in accordance with accounting

: " procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect ali.
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations ‘of in-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or requnred by the Department.

6.1.3.  Statistical records for each mass media campaign, records regardmg
- .all invoices submitted to the Departmenl to obtain payment for such
services.

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. The Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Depariment
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, atits discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contraclor.

; >3
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Payment Terms

This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 34% Federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
Block Grant COVID-19 Supplemental Award, as awarded on March 15,
2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance

. Abuse & Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.387; FAIN
NU58DP006786; and

1.2. ‘66% General funds,

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expendltures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved ling items, as specmed in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
4, Budget. ’

The Contractor shall submlt an invoice in a form satlsfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth {15th) workmg day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

- In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may-be assigned an electronlc 5|gnalure and

emailed to DPHSContractBiiling@dhhs.nh.gov , or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
'29 Hazen Drive

* Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General

_ Provisions Form Number P- 37 of this Agreement

The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in_
compliance with funding requirements.

The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may'be wnthheld in
whole or in part.inthe event of non- -compliance with the terms and condilions’
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

: 03
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' agreement.

10.

11.

NoMithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event -
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable

“to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been

satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation. and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor ‘and Execulive Council, if needed and,

" justified.

Audits , .
11.1. The  Contractor must email an = annual audit to -
melissa.s.morin@dhhs.nh.gov if any of the following. conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
: requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of 1,000,000 or more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
. by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) 1o the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's-fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part-
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an -
annual financial audit performed ‘by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year. '

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the '
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

DS
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_-Exhibit C-1 Budget

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Budgpet Perlod: Februrary 16, 2022 - June 39, 2022

Bidder/Program Namae: JS| Research & Tralning Institute, Inc. dbia Community Health Institute

Budgst Raguest for: Mxss Medls Campalgns to Promots Pre-Teen and Adolesceit Vaping Prevention and Treatment - BDAS
Pame of RFF) .

Line ltem

_Total Progrem Cosl

Contractor Shara 7 Match .~

Funded by DHHS contract thare

Direct

Indirect .

o Totzt

Direct

indlrect

Total

. Dirmct

indirect

Total

5. Toial SaferyWages

40,434.50

40,434.50

40,434 50

40,434.50

2. Employen Benellts

13,963.78

18.663.78
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C18.063.T8

18.963.78
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Rew Rzmpshire Department of Health and Human Services
BidderfProgram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.. dhda Community Health Institute
Budgel Request for: Mass Medla Cmnigm to Promote Pre-Teen end Adolescent Viping Prevention and Treaiment - BDAS
frimme of RFF)
Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - March 14, 2023
Tolal Program Cost Contractor Share / Match Fundwd by DHHS contratt thare
Line ltem . Direct © Indirect Total Ciirect Indirect Total Dlract tndirect Totsl
1. Totzl Saary/Woges s 4043450 $ - s 40.434.50 s j - 15 40.434.50 $ 40.434 50
2 _Employes Benefits $ 896781 8 3 18,951.78 $ - $ 11.963.78 5 18.961.78
3. Conmuiants [] - ] $ . 3 . s -
4. Equipment: 3 - 5 3 3 S
Rental - 3 = 3 3 - 3 ]
[Repalr snd Maintensnce 3 - 13 3 ] 3 3
Purchase/O¢preciation 3 - 3 - $ S s
5. Suppiies: $ $ 5 - 3 3
Ecuestions 5 - 3 - 4 - 3 $
Lob $ 5 - $ s $
Phermacy 3 3 - 3 3 S
Medical 3 - 3 3 3 3
Ofica H - 3 ] [ $
6, Trarvel 3 3 3 S S
7. © $ - $ - [} [ -
|a Cuﬂm E:oemea 3 - 3 $ - 3 - $
Tetephone 3 3 - $ 3 5
|Postage b $ - 5 k) - $
L $ 3 3 - S
|Audit end Legal s ] $ E:
Insurance 3 - $ $ 3
Boord Expenses - [ $ 3 3
9. Softwarn - - 3 F - 3
10, Markeling/Communications 3 3 3 3
11, S1aff Education end Training g 3 3 3 =
12._Subcontrects/Agreements [} - 3 3 - 3
[13. Other (specific detalls mandatoryy | § - 3 - s - 5 -
Oualtrics, Printing, CART Translation 3 2467.501 3% - 3 2,487.50 3 * S 2.4567.50 S 2,467 .50
Incirect Costs (21.23%) 3 1592261 % - 5 15922.81 ] H 15.922.81 s 15.922.61
3 . $ 3 - $ - 5 -
3 = 3 3 - 3 = 3
= - $ 3 - - . 3
Indirect | § - 3 = g
TOTAL - $ 7500000 $ - 1S 7500000 ] 5 - [] T - 3 - 13 75,000.00] S - 13 75.000.04 |

- ]
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JSI Treining end Research Institute, Inc.
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= )USAID

FROM THE AMERICAN PEOPLE

NEGOTIATED INDIRECT COST RATE AGREEMENT

September 30, 2021

John Snow, Incorporated

JST Research and Training Institute, inc.
44 Famsworth Street '
Boston, MA 02210-121 I

Pursuant to §742.770 of the U.S. Agency for International Dcvclopmcnt Acquisition Regulation

(AIDAR), the rates in this Agreement are for use on grants, contracts and other agreements with
the Federal Government, subject to the conditions in Section 11.A, below.

SECTION |: NEGOTIATED INDIRECT COST RATES

. INDIRECT COST .
EFFECTIVE PERIOD | i . RATE
) FRINGE OVERHEAD
TYPE FROM THROUGH ; (a) (b)

Provisional 01-0t-16 12-31-16 . N/A . 19.25%
Provisional 01-01-17 12-31-17 N/A 83.77%
Provisional |. 01-01-18 12-31-18 . N/A ' 85.02%
Provisional 01-01-19 12-31-19 N/A 87.56% -
Provisional [ 01-01-20 12-31-20 - CN/A 90.00%
Provisional 01-01-21. 12-31-21 N/A 88.56%
Provisional 01-01-22 | Until Amended 46.90% 21.23%

Base of Application -
a) US payroll abor dollars

~ b) Direct labor doltars plus holiday, sick, and vacation
Effective 01/01/2022, the base of application is Total direct costs excluding subcontracts,
subgrants, and cquipment costs over $5,000

LLS. Agency for Intemationa Development
1300 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washinglon, DC 20523

www.usald.gov
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SECTION 1I: GENERAL

A,

LIMITATIONS: Usc of the rate(s) contained in this Agreement is subject to all statutory or

administrative limitations and is applicable to a given grant, contract or other agreement-only
to the extent that funds are available. Acccptance of the rate(s) agreed o herein is predicated
upon the following condmons

That no costs other than those incurred by the grantee/contractor or allocated to the
grantee/contractor via an approved central service cost allocation plan were included in its
indirect cost rate proposal and that such incurred costs are legal obligations of the
grantee/contractor and allowable under the governing cost principles,

That the information provided by the granice/contractor which was used as a basis for
acceptance of the rate(s) to herein is not subsequently found to be m'aterially inaccurate, -

That the samc costs that havc becn trcated as indircct costs have not been claimed as direct
costs, and

That similar types of costs have been accorded consistent treatment.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES: The grantee/contractor is. required to provide written
notification to the indirect cost negotiator prior to implementing any changes which could
affect the applicability of the approved rates. Any changes in accounting practice to include
changes in the method of charging a particular type of cost as direct or indirect and changes’
in the indirect cost allocation base or allocation methodology require the prior approval of the
Office of Overhecad, Special Cost and Closeout (OCC). Failure to obtain such prior.written
approval may result in cost disallowance.

NOT!FICATION TO FEDERAL AGENCIES: A copy of this document is to be provided by

this organization to other Federal funding sources as a means of notifying them of the
Agreement contained herein.

PROVISIONAL-FINAL RATES: The grantcc/contractor must submit a proposal to cstablish
a final indirect cost rate within six months after its fiscal year end. Billings and charges to
Federal awards must be adjusted if the final rate varies from the provisional rate. If the final
rate is grealer than thc provisional rate and there are no funds available to cover the
additional indirect costs, the organization may not recover all indirect costs. Conversely, if
the final rate is less than the prov:snonal rate, the organization will be requ:red to pay back
the difference to the funding agency.
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1.

2.

3

4,

SPECIAL REMARKS:

Indirect costs charged to Federal grants/contracts by means other than the rate(s) cited in the
agreement should be adjusted to the applicable rate(s) cited herein which should be applicd to
the appropriate base to identify the proper amount of indirect costs allocabie to the program.

Grants/contracts providing for ceilings as to the indirect cost rate(s) or amount(s}), which are
indicated in Section | above, will be subject to the céilings stipulated in the grant, contract or
other agreement. The ceiling rate(s) or the rate(s) cited in this Agreement, whichever is
lower, will be 0Used to determine the maximum allowable indirect cost on the grant or
contract agreement.

‘The rates hereby approved are subject to periodic review by the Government at any time their
use is decmed improper or  unreasonable.  You are requested to advisc the Government

promptly of any circumstances, which could affect the applicability of the approved rates.

You arc directed to submit adjustment or finat financial expenditure reports (SF-425) for all
flexibly priced grants und other agreements; or adjustment or_ final vouchers for all flexibly
priced contracts within 120 days after settlement of the final annual indirect cost rates. Audit
adjustments should be clearly delincated so as to be readily identifiable for verification by
this officé. Care should be taken that amounts claimed do not exceed award limitations or
indirect cost rate ceilings. USAID will deobligate any remaining funds if the required
financial cxpenditurc reports or vouchers arc not submitted within 120 ‘days. Oncc the
money is dc-obligated, it will not be reinstated. ‘

ACCEPTED: John Snow, Incorporated . .
JSI Research and Training ute, Inc. ) E u g en |é Digitally signed

\by Eugenia Brown

. ' _ / Daie:2021.0930
s Foan T Browpy
By: {

Eugenia L. Brown

U('_’..-— Signature " 3
Jf}e\ l ;_&m('éi O . Contracting Officer .
- Overhead, Specia! Cost and Closcout Branch
Printedor Typed\Name “Cost, Audit and Suppon Division
* Office of Acquisition and Assistance .
I _ - er_mgcmcm Burean
/ [ T'T U.S. Agency for International Developmiens
~
(O ] S | ,

7
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Viendor idanlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 1o comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title-V, Subltitle D; 41
{.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Conlraclor's representative, as identified in Seclions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT-OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS.

This centificalion is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pan 1l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require cerlification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a granlee (and by inference, sub-granlees and sub-contraclors) that is a State
may elecl to make one cedification to the Depariment in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for -
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The cerlificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the cerlification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspenston or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Depaniment of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasanl Street,

, .Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee centifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a slatement nolifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dislribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibiled in the grantee’s
workplace and specifylng the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform employees about

" 1.21. The dangars of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.23. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4, The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; ’

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in lhe performance of the grant be
given a copy of the stalement required by paragraph (a); )

14. Nolifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilion of

' employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the stalement; and
1.4.2. Nolify the employer in wriling of his or her conviclion for a violalion of a criminal drug
slalute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction,;

1.5. Nolifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving nolice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual nolice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide natice, including position title, to every grant
officer on.whose grant activity the convicled employee was working, unless the Federaﬁlﬁagency

5G
Exhibll D - Centification regarding Orug Froe Vendor Inilials
Workplace Requirements 1/31/2022°
CUDHHS 10713 Pago 1 of 2 Dale



DocuSign Envelope D: B323009D-78CE-44B0-0308-2567B4389FF9

DocuSign Efivelope ID: B46T2F70-4798-4782-5672-50B86836C978

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such nolices. Notlce shall include the
_ identification number(s) of each affected granl;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respecl to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking apprapriale personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehablmalnon Act of 1973, as
. amended; or
1.6.2. Regquiring such employee to participate sallsfactonly in a drug .abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriale agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2.. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the silé(s) for the performance of work done in
conneclion with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, cily, county, slate, zip code) (list each location}
Check O if there are workplaces on file thal are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Doculigned by:

1/31/2022 . Ssssn Grartham

Date i Name: ifi Grantham -
’ Title:

vice President, Health Services Division

D3
5
Exhibit O - Cerlification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements 1/31/2022

CUBHHYI1071) Page 2 of 2
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of,
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND'HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Famities under Tille IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Tille IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Tille XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX - ;
*Communily Services Block Grant under Title VI -

*Child Care Development Block Grant'under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, 1o the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been.paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, o
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any-agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal conltrac, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee of sub-contractor). -

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employes of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibil E-1.)

3. The undérsigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in.the award
document for sub-awards at all liers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that ali sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cerlification is a malerial represenlation of faci'upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or enlered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject Lo a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

DocuSigned by:

1/31/2022 Setar Grantlam
Dale amd" rantham
Tille: . . . s
vice President, Health Services Division
D3
[
Exhibit E - Cedilication Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials

. 1/31/2022
CLIDHHSN 10713 Page 101 Date ] :
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DESARMENT, SUSPENSION
. - AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of -
. Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 'and.45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification: |

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIF!CATION } Z
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification sel out below. :

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospeclive primary
participant to fumish a certification.or an explanation shall disquality such person from participation in
this transaction. .

3. The ger'tiﬁcation in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance’ was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospeclive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available o the Federal Government, DHHS may terminale Lhis transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency lo

- whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if al any time the prospectlive primary parlicipant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. ' ' !

5. The terms "covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” *principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Parl 76. See the
attached definitions.- : '

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitling this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, untess authorized by DHHS,

7. The prospective primary parlicipant further agrees by submitling this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Centification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all tower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participan!'in a
lower tier covered ransaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslrued to require eslablishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and[ SE’

Exhibil F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Inhials
. And Other Responsibility Matters 1/31/2022
CUOHHS/ 110113 ' Page 1 of 2 ate
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6.of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition 1o other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11, The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: : .
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, praposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or'local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violalion of Federal or State antitrust
slatutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making faise statements, or receiving stolen property; : 3
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govermnmental entity
{Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)({b)
of this cerification; and
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify td any of the statements in this
certificalion, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {conlract). -

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ,

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the. prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 78, certifies lo the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

~ voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

.14. The prospective lower lier participant furiher agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it will-
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Z Doculigned by:
- 1/31/2022 | Sesar Grantbam
~ Date - Wrantham
Title:

vice President, Health Services Division

Ds
E
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor tnitials
And Other Responsiulily Matters 1/31/2022
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIM]NATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Thle Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the'General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative-as identified in Secuons 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execuie the follow:ng
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
tederal nondiscriminalion requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which prohiblls
recipients of federal funding under this stalute from discriminating, either in employmen: practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Acl
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligalions of the Safe Streets Acl. Recipients of federal funding under this:
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employmenl practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nateonal origin, and sex. The Actincludes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or.national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclion 794}, which prohibits recipients of Federal financial -
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
gervices or benefits, in any program or aclivity,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits.
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
.government services, public agcommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; .

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-886), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age inprograms or aclivities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does nolinclude
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Juslice Regulations - QJJDP Grant Programs), 26 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nordiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38'(U.S:Department of Juslice Regulations = Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizalions), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act {NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacled January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Prolections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acllvmes in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False cetification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for

" suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. . ~

. ) s
Exhibh G l SC
’ Contractor initials

Centiication of Compliance with requirements pecialring 1o Federsl Nondadrimineton, Equal Trestment usmw&wﬁm
arv) Whistisbilowsr protections

e/ . 1/31/2022
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In the event a Federal or State courl or Federal or State administrative agency makes & finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national crigin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding 1o the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contraclor's
representalive as identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
centification: :

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Conlractor Name:

1/31/2022
Date

os
- Exhibit G 1 SG
; Contractor Inhials

Coartification of Compliance with fecrarements pertaining 1o Federal Hondisabrination, Equal Tresiment of Faith-Based Organizations
. and ¥Wnisteblowss prolaciions
Loy . 1/31/2022
Rev. 10721704 Page 2 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope D B323009D-78CE-44B0-9308-2567B4380FF9

DocuSign Envelope (D: B4672F7D-4798-4762-9672-5DB868IBCITE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracied for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the'services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, toan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an ‘administrative compliance order on the responsible entily.’

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signaturé of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ' '

. 1. By signing and submilting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1894,

Contractor Name:

1/31/2022
Date .
Tlle:  yjce president, Health services Division
C
Exhibit H = Cerification Regarding Conlractor tnftials >—=
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 1/31/2022
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HEALTH (NSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY
ACT (HIPAAI BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Exhibil I is not applicable to this Agreement.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA] COMPLIANCE : .

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Oclober 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and assaciated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initia! award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of lhe award.

In accordance with 2 CFR_Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execulive Compensation Information), the
Depariment of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award tile descriptive of the purpose of the funding actlon
Location of the enlity
_Principle place-of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federa! government and those-
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOXNOO N LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dala by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prowsmns of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execulive Compensation information), and further agrees.
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in-Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execule the following Certification;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above g the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federa!
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

) - DocuSigned by:
1/31/2022 | Sessr Granthion
.Date . Name, TELOiER

Title: vice president, Health Services Division
o3
‘ 5G
Exhiblt J - Centification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inltlals
Accountabillty And Transparency Act (FFATA) Complianco 1/31/2022
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cerlify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

. 14-572-9117
1. The DUNS number for your antity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organizatibn
receive (1) BO percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracls,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements, and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X _NO YES
If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access lo information about the compensation of the éxecutives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 i .

- NO . YES
If the"answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
.Name: Amount:
os
Exhibil J — Centification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
] Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 1/31/2022
CUDHHS 10713 Page 2 of 2 te 3
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A. Definitions

" The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1.

“Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acqmsnhon unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
. situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other ‘than
authorized purpose -have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physicdl or electronic. With regard to Protected Heaith
" Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term Breach in section
164.402 of Trtle 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

*Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of ‘Standards and Technology. U.s. Departmenl
of Commerce. )

“Confidential- Information”, or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public’
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case .Records, Prolected Heallh Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ali information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by’
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Heafth Information (PH1), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFt), Federal Tax’ Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensitive and ‘confidential information.

“End User means any person or enlity (e.g., conlractor, conlractor's employee,’
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user; etc.) that. receives
DHHS data or derivative dala in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability. Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Incident” means an act that potentlally violates an exphcnt or implied security policy,

. which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access 10 a
“system or its data, unwanted disruplion or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misptacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents and misrouting of physical or electronic

C
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhitil K Contractor Infilals

DHHS Information
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10.
1.

12.

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

“Open ‘Wireless Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as ~a protecled network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data

“Personal tnformation” (or “PI1"} méans information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social securily number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birlh, mother's maiden
name, etc.

“Privacy Rule™shall mean the Standards for anacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United -
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Prolected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the -
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C. F R. §
160.103. '

“Securily Rule® shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Informalion at 45 C. F R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendmenls
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means Protected Heaith Information thal is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protecled Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable {o unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organizalion that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. '

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

'A. - Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.

2.

The Contractor must not usse, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
excepl as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employées and agents, must not

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation

of the Privacy and Security Rule.
The Conlractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

: y o3
[—ﬁ
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is requireAd by law, in response to ‘a
subpoena, elc., without first nolifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the dlsclosure

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor'that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional -

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuan! to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disciose PHI in violation of such additional
reslrictions and must abide by any addilional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agreés that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an Eng

User must only be used pursuant lo the term's of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose: of inspecting to conf irm compliance with- lhe terms of this
Contract

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data conlaining
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said .
appllcatlon s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via‘the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or porlable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting CHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email 10 transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being senl to and being received ‘by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit.Conﬁ'denliaI
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be

- secure. SSL encrypts data transmitled via a Web site.
- File' Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file

hosting services, such as Dropbox or -Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. iIf End User is employing portable devices to transmut
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may'not transmit Confidential Data via an open

DHHS Information

03
l G
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10.

1

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential. Data, a viftual private network (VPN) must be

installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be .

transmitted or accessed.
SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. Iif

End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting .Conft dential Data will
be coded for 24- hour auto-delelion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours)

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmlttlng Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent mapprqpnate disclosure of information. .

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivalive of the data for the duralion of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and -any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: '

A.

Retention

1. The Confractor agrees. it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under.this Contract outside of the Uniled
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agreés to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in '

place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Depariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contraclor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. " The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data -

in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware ulilities. The environment, as a

o3
(=
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete coopération with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any secunty vulnerability of the hosting
mfrastructure

AB. ~Disp05ition

1. If the Contractor wi! mainlain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such dala upon request_or contract termination; and will
obtain wrillen cedtification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contraclor or any.subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media conlaining State of
New Hampshire data shall be refdered unrecoverable via a securé wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted slandards for secure deletion and.media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media ({fof example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and centify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and- professional slandards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. :

3. Unless olherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of- this
Contract, Contractor agrees o completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping:

V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY |

A Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Depértment
confidential information coltected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracled services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle;, where applicable, {from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

| C
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The Contractor will maintain éppropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabililies are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems,

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for ils End

- Users in support of protecting Department confidential mformatlon

If the Contractor will be sub~contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain_a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. .

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign-and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and comiputer use agreements as part of

. obtaining and maintaining access to any Depariment system(s). Agreements will be

10.

1.

completed and signed by the- Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

If the Depariment determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor wiil execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with. the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to-monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities thal may
occur over the life of the Confractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Informa!ron Security Oﬁ' ce
leadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall .

.make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to

prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

o3
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12.

13

14,

15.

16.

'the‘ breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and

costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. ‘

Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statules and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects

‘maintain the privacy ang security of Pl and PHI at a tevel and scope that is not less

than the level and scope of requiremenis applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C.. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 CF.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern proteclions for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees lo establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and.
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the leve! and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps./iwww.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology pol:cuas guidefines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and - incident
response process. The Contractor will nolify the State’s’ Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immedialely, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
securily incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connecl to the State of New Hampshire network. :

Contractor must restrict access, 10 the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in t_his Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section iV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

" b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other eleclronic devices/media containing PHI, PI or
PF| are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

. ) D3
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in transil, at rest or when
stored on ponable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Canfidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their-credential information secure.
. This applies to credentials used 10 access the site directly or indirectly through

a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract; ipcluding the privacy and securily requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

. The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches lmmedtately. at the email addresses provided in
Section Vi

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor wnll

" 1. lIdentify lnmdents

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. ;

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20:.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer;
) DHHSPrivacyOfﬁcer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
" DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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